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Review Report of Certified Public Accountant

To the Board of Directors of KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

have reviewed the accompanying consolidated and Bank-only balance sheets as at 31 March

2009 and the related statements of income changes in equity and cash flows for the three-month

penod then ended of KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED and its subsidiaries

and of KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED respectively The Banks

management is responsible for the correctness and completeness of information presented in these

financial statements My responsibility is to issue report on these financial statements based on

my review The consolidated and Bank-only statements of income changes in equity and cash

flows for the three-month period ended 31 March 2008 of KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC

COMPANY LIMITED and its subsidiaries and of KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY
LIMITED respectively were reviewed by another auditor whose report dated 15 May 2008

stated that nothing had come to his attention that caused him to believe that those financial

statements were not presented fairly in all material respects in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles

conducted my review in accordance with the auditing standard on review engagements This

standard requires that plan and perform the review to obtain moderate assurance as to whether

the financial statements are free of material misstatement review is limited primarily to

inquiries of the Bank personnel and analytical procedures applied to fmancial data and thus

provides less assurance than an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards

have not performed an audit and accordingly do not express an audit opinion on the reviewed

financial statements

Based on my review nothing has come to my attention that causes me to believe that the fmancial

statements referred to above are not presented fairly in all material respects in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles

The consolidated and Bank-only financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008 of

KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED and its subsidiaries and of

KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED respectively were audited by another

auditor who expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements in his report dated 25

February 2009 The consolidated and Bank-only balance sheets as at 31 December 2008 which

are included in the accompanying fmancial statements for comparative purposes are components

of those financial statements

Somboon Supasiripinyo

Certified Public Accountant

Registration No 3731

KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd

Bangkok

14 May 2009



ASSETS

KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

BALANCE SBEETS

AS AT 31 MARCB 2009 AND 31 DECEMBER 2008

Consolidated

Thousand Baht

The Bank

31 March 2009 31 December 2008 31 March 2009

Note Unaudited Unaudited

31 December 2008

Cash

Interbank and money market items

Domestic items

4099327

485520

73377873

112389512

76292159

144009

188825680

5549673 4099327

1624098 485520

196300199 73747437

68497788 112140478

34233331 76138676

213920 9474177

102945039 197753331

5549673

1624098

196707803

68259574

34084314

9474177

111818065

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of these financial statements

13

13

15295221 27751133 15293583 27749840

67157408 186731920 67566734 187163373

1635618 2394508 1595856 2370659

Interest bearing

Non-interest bearing

Foreign items

Interest bearing

Non-interest bearing

Total Interbank and Money Market Items net

Investments

Current investanents net

Lmg-term investments net

Investments in subsidiaries and associated companies net

Total Investments net

Loans and accmed interest receivables

Loans

Accmed interest receivables

Total Loans and Accmed Interest Receivables

Leaa Allowance for doubtilal accounts

Leaa Revaluation allowance for debt restructuring

Total Loans and Accrued Interest Receivables net

Properties foreclosed net

Customers liability under acceptances

Premises and equipment net

Intangible assets net

Derivative revaluation

877141854

1333682

878475536

26879771

3716.439

847879326

14538065

484379

30754082

9918530

26795139

904008483

1485402

905493885

26394024

3377678

875722183

14391986

491592

29657262

9223691

36451821

Total Assets

874051305

1297932

875349237

25621374

3716326

848011537

11446938

484379

29918061

8614691

26795139

900587489

1454349

902041838

25124928

3377539

873539371

11228784

491592

28833797

7912230

36451821

Other assets net 9993408 10619584 8383647 8818920

1217861703 1303554490 1218448743 1303552223



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

BALANCE SHEETS

AS AT 31 MARCH 2009 AND 31 DECEMBER 2008

Thousand Baht

Consolidated The Bank

31 March 2009 31 December 2008 31 March 2009 31 December 2008

Unaudited Unaudited

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Deposits

Deposits in balst 893525580 952855541 894477682 953693804

Deposits in foreign currencies 20580870 15094230 20580870 15094230

Total Deposits
914106450 967949771 915058552 968788034

Interbank and money market ilems

Domestic items

Interest bearing 6313146 11738123 6820710 12271555

Non-interestbearing 3846247 3218959 3881706 3237941

Foreign items

Inlerest bearing 220t327 1008239 2201327 1008239

Non-interest bearing 224890 334379 224890 334379

Total lntettrank and Money Market Items 12585610 16299700 13128633 16852114

Liabilities payable on demand 12389102 10882927 12389093 10882805

Borrowings

Short-term borrowings
70346142 97635655 70469938 97453984

Long-tenn borrowings 42811289 40523227 42811289 40523227

Total Borrowings 113157431 138158882 113281227 137977211

Banks liability under acceptances 484379 491592 484379 491592

Derivative revaluation 23490868 31899970 23490868 31899970

Provisions 4088865 4232519 4080847 4207233

Other liabilities 19944628 19976535 19202728 19147315

Total Liabilitses 1100247333 1189891896 1101116327 1190246274

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fmancial statements



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

BALANCE SHEETS

AS AT 31 MARCH 2009 AND 31 DECEMBER 2008

Thousand Baht

Consolidated The Bank

31 March 2009 31 December 2008 31 March 2009 31 December 2008

Note Unaudited Unaudited

Equity

Share capital

Authorized share capital 11

3048614697 ordinary shares Baht 10
par

value 30486147 30486147 30486147 30486147

Issued and paid-up share capital

2393260193 ordinary shares Baht 10 par value 23932602 23932602 23932602 23932602

Premium on ordinary shares 18103110 18103110 18103110 18103110

Appraisal surplus on asset revaluation 10892748 10941913 10892748 10941913

Revaluation surplus on investments 2357840 2207073 2358210 2207793

Retained earnings

Appropriated

Legal reserve 3050000 3050000 3050000 3050000

Unappropriated 59277863 55427843 58995746 55070531

Total equity attributable 10 equity holders of the Bank 117614163 113662541 117332416 113305949

Minority interests
207 53

Total Equity
117614370 113662594 117332416 113305949

Total Liabilities and Equity
1217861703 1303554490 1218448743 1303552223

Off-balance sheet items contingencies 14

Aval to bills and guarantees of loans 1771793 1563960 1771793 1563960

Liability under umuatured import bills 4532181 5643988 4532181 5643988

Letters ofcredil 17212575 17165133 17212575 17165133

Other contingencies 2213149555 2250537454 2212889355 2250262914

/7% /i /-
Pol.Gvrs Pow Sarasin

Dr.Prasarn Trauatvorakul

Vice Chairman President

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fmancial statements



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 AND 2008

UNAUDITED

Thousand Baht

Consolidated The Bank

Note 2009 2008 2009 2008

Interest and dividend income

Loans 13141884 11981352 13461733 12204867

tnterbank and money market items 672863 556431 672688 555449

Finance leases 608656 405903

Investments 1006924 974597 1418015 I043776

Total Interest and Dividend Income 15510327 13918283 15552436 13804092

Interest
expense

Deposits 3519918 3131379 3520038 3131192

Interbank and money market items 59855 59414 60707 59951

Short-term borrowings 555595 258552 560355 263466

Long-term borrowings 619394 249302 6I84t2 249302

Total Interest Expense 4754762 3698647 4759512 3703911

Net income from interest and dividends 10755565 10219636 10792924 10100181

Bad debt and doubtful accounts 1376155 1424949 1340717 1446556

Lass an debt restructuring 983760 450940 903737 428118

Net income from interest and dividends after bud debt and doubtful accoants

and toss an debt restructuring 8395642 8343747 8468470 8225507

Non-interest income

Gain on investments 175605 770462 174133 754640

Share of profit from investments on equity method 5009 14171

Fees and service income

Acceptances aval and guarantees 317947 300621 317947 300621

Others 3910298 3588767 3445117 3t3tI66

Gain on exchanges 1128598 881528 1128645 881058

Other income 133794 I97255 134205 180469

Total Non-interest Income 5671331 5760804 5200047 5247954

Non-interest expenses

Personnel expenses 3329018 2808056 2753612 2405919

Premises and equipment expenses 1858933 1601799 2020986 I665908

lanes and duties 548075 541512 534541 529958

Fees and service expenses 1024013 1001690 981637 976318

Directors remuneration 14401 14159 14401 12659

Contributions to Financial Institutions Development Fund and Deposit

Protection Agency 873184 791196 873.184 791196

Other
expenses

952199 838215 1045067 928921

Total Non-interest Expenses 8599023 7676627 8223428 73l0879

Income before income tax 5467150 6427924 5445089 6162582

Income lax expense 1667392 1989985 1562148 1924732

Net income 3799758 4437939 3882941 4237850

Net income loss attributable to

Equity holders of the Bank 3799760 4437938 3082941 4237850

Minority interest

Net income 3799758 4437939 3882941 4237850

Basic earnings per
share Baht 11 1.59 1.05 1.62 1.77

Weighted average number of ordinary sbares shares 11 2393260193 2392759964 2393260193 2392759964

Pol.Gen Pow Sarasin Dr.Pranarn Trairatvorakul

Vice Chairman President

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fmancial statements



KASJRORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF CHANCES IN EQUITY

FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 AND 2000

UNAUDITED

Thousand Halil

Consolidated

Issued and Premium on Appraisal Revaluation Retained Eainmgs Total equity Minority Total

Paid-up Share Share Capital Sarplas on Asset Sacplus on Appropriated Unappropttated attnhutahle Interests

Capital Revaluation Investments Legal Reoeroe to eqaily holders of

tht Hank

Balance ni of Jannary 2000 23882823 18812979 9741708 508261 2920000 44870321 99995285 50 99995335

Appraisal sucpluo on asset revaluation 33409 33489

Others 28598 28598 28598

Revaluation saeptao an mvesnssents 847014 847814 847014

Nnt income expense retogniced directly in eqoity 33489 847014 4891 818416 818416

Net income 4437938 4437958 4437939

Totnl recogoited income and
espeoie

33489 847014 4442829 3206334 5256355

Ordinary shares 30379 30379 30579

Prerniamonordmaryshares 90131 90131 90131

Endioghnlancrniarll
March 2000 23932602 18103.110 9.708.212 1.415.275 2.920.000 49313150 105392349 49 103392398

Balance as oft Mnrch 2009 23932602 18103110 10941913 2207073 3000000 35427843 113662341 53 113662594

Appraisal surplas on asset revalaatson 42274 42274

Others 6891 7986 1093 1090

Revalaanau uiaplas on investments 150767 150767 150767

Net income expeoie recogniied dIrectly io equity 49863 150767 30260 13 t862 151862

Net income lots 3799760 3799760 3799750

Total recognieed ioconie and
expense

49165 150767 3830020 3931622 3931620

Others 136 156

Ending bnlancr ai nf3t March2009 23932602 tOl03l 10 10892748 2357840 3050000 59277863 t76l4 163 207 117614370

The accompsnymg notes are an mtegrsl part
of these ftnancisl statements



KASIKORIOBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITE1 ANI SIJBSDLARJES

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED MARCH 2009 AND 2000

UNAIJDITED

Balance as of January 2008

Appraisal surplus on asset revaluation

Revaluation smplus on mvesiments

Not income expense recognised directly in equity

Net mcome

Total recognised income and
eapenee

Oedmary shares

Premium on ordinary shares

Ending balance as of3l March 2000

Balance as oft Janoary 2009

Appraisal sueplus on asset revaluation

Others

Revaluation sutplus on mvestments

Net income expense recognised directly in equity

Net mcome

Total recognised income and eaponse

Ending balance as of 31 March 2009

The accomponysng Dotes are so mtegral psrt of these fmsncisl statements

2920500 45011111

33489 33489

846523

33489 046523 33489

4237850

33489 946523 4271339

50579 50579

3050000 50070331

42274

6891 6891

150417

49165 130417 42274

3802941

49165 155417 3925215

10092748 2350210 3050000 58995746

Thousand Haht

The Hank

Issued and Premium en Appraisal Revaluation Retained Earnings

Paid-up Share Share Capital Suiplus on Asset Surplus on Appropriated Unappropriated

Capital Revaluation lnvestnsents Legal Reserve

23082023 18012979 5675249741701

Total equity

attributable to equity

holders of the Hank

100135130

846523

846523

4237850

5084373

9708212 1413847 292t000 49282450

90231

23932602 18003tlt

23932602 18103110

23932602 18103110

10941913

42274

2207793

90131

105360221

113305949

150417

143526

3882941

4026467

117332416



KASDIORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OP CASH FLOWS

FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 AND 2008

UNAUDITED

Thousand Babt

Consolidated The Bank

Note 2009 2008 2009 2008

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTWITtES

Net income 3799760 4437939 3802941 4237050

Add Less Adjasanents to reconcile net income tenet

cash from operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 687369 1000519 627275 583372

Bad debts and doabtllsl accoants 1376155 1424940 1340717 1446556

Loss on debt restractssring
983760 450940 903737 428118

tsterest income from smorlienlien of revalaalion allowance for debt rmlractnring 71043 27806 70987 26555

Loss gain foeeign eschange translation of long-term borrowings t6640 449930 116640 449930

Loss en revalsatian of investments 42486 26666 42486 26666

Loss an impairment of invesanents in secarities 12011 15911

Gain on disposal of secarities for investment 102346 156157 101072 127619

Gain on disposal of geneml invesonenls 562925 562925

Discoant amertizatien on debt instraments 359592 297700 267177 297022

Loss on issspaimseat of investments in receivables 1302 19406 403

Loss on impairment of foreclosed properties 110507 93206 111039

Loss on impairment of other assets 9695 5660 9783 92594

Loss on impaiment of intangible assets 6125

Gain on sales efloans 3107 3107

Gain on disposal of prensises and eqaipment 393 219 255 150

Reversal of loss on impniesnent of premises and eqaipment
10096 tO996

Gain on tmnsfer of financial assets 2546

Share of profit from investments on eqaity method 5089 14171

Dividend income from associated companies 75000 9450

Effect from flstl consolidation 426702

Ansaetization of discoant on promissory note receivables 5231 5629 2452

Ansortizatios of discoant on debeainres 090 006 890 806

Increase decrease in other accmcd expenses 000059 1024015 322535 562.195

Decrease in other reserves 117469 22930 117469 22.938

7406419 7395575 6222313 4705404

Net income from interest and dividends 10755.565 10219635 10792924 10.100181

Income lax expense
1667392 1909985 1562140 1924732

Proceeds from interest and dividends 15897469 14420400 18367002 14322712

Interest paid 4229137 3237066 4230639 3240657

Income lax paid
140932 116470 97099 81900

Net income from operations before changes is operating

assets and liabilities 9045646 10240789 11031601 7610110

Increase decrease in aperating assets

Intethank and money market items assets 122983114 37549750 122063883 37634.297

Secarities parchased ander resale agreements 10700000 10700000

Investment for Ending 2542962 6165074 2450550 6165074

Loans 24303431 30901521 24097075 37057098

Properties foreclosed 759600 900477 682917 557785

Other assets 10006346 5601572 7437842 7110823

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fmancial statements



Increase decrease in operating liabilities

KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 AND 2008

UNAUDITED

Consolidated

Thoasand Baht

The Bank

Note 2009 2008 2009 2008

Depotits

Ineerbnnk nod money
market items liabilities

Liabilities payable on demand

Share-term borrowings

Other liabilities

Nec Cash Provided by Opemting Activities

CASH PLOWS PROM DtVESTING ACTWITIES

Proceeds from disposal of available for sale investments

Proceeds from redemption of held to maturity debt iestruments

Proceeds from disposal of geneml investments

Proceeds from collection of investments in receivables

Purchase of uvuilnblr for sale investments

Purchase of held to maturity debt imlruments

Purchase of geneml investments

Proceeds from disposal of premises and eqaipment

Purchase of prentises and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

CASH PLOWS PROM PINANCII4O ACTWITtES

Increase in lang-term hormwings

Increase in share capital

Increase in premium on share capital

Net Cash Provided by Pinascing Activities

Net decrease increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash rquivalenls at the beginning of the period

Cash nod cash equivalents at the end of the period

53843322 91791046 53729482 92124666

3714000 1590887 372348t 1634358

1306175 3460186 1506288 3460248

27289513 2102375 26984046 1793840

11462245 9231130 10004360 10895106

75718104 30701871 75639587 30299843

36414981 23768390 36379094 23763487

3132759 910544 3132734 643544

11460 17156 8260 16201

5430 231601 5430 2389

127373322 532446t9 127330142 53139047

110134 157540 110134 157540

8800 1654 6654

452 239 257 150

1398111 1167118 1533070 686661

819262 972756 817625 657310

00344548 30615477 90266376 30219361

2170532 177799 2170532 177799

50579 50579

90131 90131

2170532 318509 2170532 318509

12455912 404903 12456257 398993

27751133 18050910 27749040 18050395

15295221 18455813 15293583 18449308

The occompanying notcn are an integral part of thete fmancial slatements



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SIJBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO TILE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 UNAUDITED
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KASIKORNIBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 UINAIJDITED

These notes form an integral part of the financial statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED the Bank is registered public company located in the

Kingdom of Thailand and listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand on Februaty 1976 The registered office of the

Bank is at Soi Kasikornthai Ratburana Road Bangkok

The principal activity of the Bank is commercial banking and the Bank conducts its businesses through network of

branches covering all parts of Thailand and certain major parts of the world

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The interim financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Thai Accounting Standard No 41 revised 2007

regarding Interim Financial Statements related interpretations and guidelines promulgated by the Federation of

Accounting Professions and the regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand SET dated 22 Januaiy 2001

regarding the Preparation and Filing of Financial Statements and Reports Concerning the Financial Status and Results

of Business Operations of Listed Companies B.E 2544 and with the Bank of Thailand BoT notification number

SOR NOR SOR7O/2551 directive dated August 2008 regarding the Preparation and announcement of the financial

statements of commercial banks and holding companies which are parent company of group of companies offering

financial services

The interim financial statements have been prepared for the purpose of providing an update on the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2008 They focus on new activities events and circumstances to avoid repetition of

information previously reported Accordingly these interim financial statements should be read in conjunction with

the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with TAS and generally accepted accounting principles in

Thailand requires management to make judgements estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies

and reported amounts of assets liabilities income and expenses These judgements estimates and assumptions are

based on historical experience and various other factors including managements assessment of the potential impact

on the Bank and subsidiaries operations and financial position of the global economic crisis Actual results may differ

from these estimates

The interim financial statements are presented in Thai Baht rounded to the nearest thousand or million unless

otherwise stated

The financial statements issued for Thai reporting purposes are prepared in the Thai language This English translation

of the financial statements has been prepared for the convenience of readers not conversant with the Thai language

The consolidated financial statements comprise the Bank its subsidiaries and its interest in associates Significant

intra group transactions between the Bank and its subsidiaries are eliminated on consolidation

11



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 UNAUDITED

The consolidated financial statements of the Bank consist of the Bank and its subsidiaries Details of the Banks

subsidiaries are as follows

Shareholding of the Bank

Directly and Indirectly

31 March 2009 31 December 2008 31 March 2008

Phethai Asset Management Co Ltd Phethai-AMC 100.00 100.00 100.00

Kasikom Research Center Co Ltd KResearch 100.00 100.00 100.00

Kasikorn Asset Management Co Ltd KAsset 100.00 100.00 100.00

Kasikom Securities Public Co Ltd KSecunties 99.99 99.99 99.99

Kasikorn Factoring Co Ltd KFactoring 100.00 100.00 100.00

Kasikorn Leasing Co Ltd KLeasing 100.00 100.00 100.00

Progress Land and Buildings Co Ltd PLB 100.00 100.00 100.00

KHAO KLA Venture Capital Management Co Ltd

KHAO KLA 100.00 100.00 100.00

K-SME Venture Capital Co Ltd K-SME 100.00 100.00 100.00

Progress Gunpai Co Ltd 100.00 100.00 100.00

Progress Plus Co Ltd 100.00 100.00 100.00

Progress Facilities Management Co Ltd 100.00 100.00 100.00

Progress Management Co Ltd 100.00 100.00 100.00

Progress Software Co Ltd 100.00 100.00 100.00

Progress Storage Co Ltd 100.00 100.00 100.00

Progress Service Support Co Ltd 100.00 100.00 100.00

Progress Service Co Ltd 100.00 100.00 100.00

Progress HR Co Ltd 100.00 100.00 100.00

Progress Appraisal Co Ltd 100.00 100.00 100.00

Progress Collection Co Ltd 100.00 100.00 100.00

Kasikorn Asset Management Co Ltd directly and indirectly holds 100% shares in KHAO KLA Venture Capital

Management Co Ltd

The consolidated fmancial statements prior to the period ended 31 March 2008 exclude the financial statements of

subsidiaries whose financial statements are not material to the Bank

The consolidated financial statements for the three-month period ended 31 March 2009 and 2008 include all financial

statements of the Banks subsidiaries See impact of full consolidation in Note

The consolidated and the Bank only financial statements include the accounts of all branches domestic and outside

Thailand Interbranch transactions have been eliminated

12



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED ANt SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 UNAUDITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Bank and its subsidiaries have adopted the following revised Thai Accounting Standards TAS which were issued by

the FAP during 2008 and effective for annual accounting periods beginning on or after Januaiy 2009

TAS 36 revised 2007 Impairment of Assets

TAS 54 revised 2007 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

The adoption of these revised TAS does not have any material impact on the consolidated and the Bank only financial

statements

Accounting policies and methods of computation applied by the Bank and its subsidianes in the interim financial statements

for the three month period ended 31 March 2009 are consistent with those applied in the financial statements for the year

ended 31 December 2008

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION OF CASH FLOWS

Non-cash items of the Bank and its subsidiaries have been presented as change in equity for the three month periods

ended 31 March as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated

2009 2008

Revaluation surplus on investments 151 847

The realized portion of the appraised surplus on asset revaluation 42 33

The Bank

2008

Revaluation surplus on investments 150 847

The realized portion of the appraised surplus on asset revaluation 42 33

For the three-month periods ended 31 March 2009 and 2008 the Bank and its subsidiaries received foreclosed properties

arising from debt settlement amounting Baht 672 million and Baht 371 million respectively on consolidated basis and

Baht 672 million and Baht 360 million respectively for the Bank only

13



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AN SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO TilE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 IJNAUIITED

INVESTMENTS

Investments consisted of

Million Baht

Current Investments

1.1 Trading investments

1.1.1 Government and state enterprises securities

1.1.2 Private enterprises debt instruments

1.1.3 Marketable equity securities domestic

Allowance for revaluation

1.2 Available-for-sale investments

1.2.1 Government and state enterprise securities

1.2.2 Private enterprises debt instruments

1.2.3 Foreign debt instruments

1.2.4 Marketable equity securities domestic

1.2.5 Others

Ads Allowance for revaluation

Allowance for impairment

1.3 Held-to-maturity debt instruments

1.3.1 Government and state enterprises securities

1.3.2 Private enterprises debt instruments

1.3.3 Foreign debt instruments

Cost Value

Amortized Cost Value

Consolidated

31 March2009

400

820

110

1.330

4657

718

288

5663

5.663

101675

254

2845

373

250

268 105397

105.397

405

820

110

1.335

1.4 General investments

1.4.1 Non-marketable equity securities domestic

Lsa Allowance for impairment

Total Current Investments net

248 248

248

112.390 112.395

Unrealized Gain Unrealized Loss

Total

Fair Value

Total

4646

715

256

5617

46

5.663

100440

296

2842

377

248

104203

1386

192

105.397

Total

12

32

47

1236

217

1462

46

221

Total

Total

Total
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIAR

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 UNAUDITED

Million Baht

Consolidated

31 March2009

Cost Value

Amortized Cost Value Unrealized Gain Unrealized Loss Fair Value

Long-term Investments

2.1 Available-for-sale investments

2.1.1 Government and state enterprises securities 66315 913 67228

2.1.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 943 19 962

2.1.3 Foreign debt instruments 1561 20 34 1547

2.1.4 Marketable equity securities domestic

Total 68908 1011 39 69880

Msi Allowance for revaluation

Total

2.2 Held-to-maturity debt instruments

2.2.1 Government and state enterprises securities 4305 118 4423

2.2.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 54 L4
Total 4889 118 584 4423

Allowance for impairment J54

Total A31 A.421

2.3 General investments

2.3.1 Non-marketable equity securities domestic 1779 128 1651

2.3.2 Non-marketable equity securities overseas 306 264 42

2.3.3 Investments in receivables

Total 2818 711 2107

Ls Allowance for impairment Jill

Total 2IQI 2.i01

Total Long-term Investments net
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 UNAUDITED

Million Baht

Consolidated

31 December 2008

Cost Value/

Amortized Cost Value Unrealized Gain Unrealized Loss Fair Value

Current Investments

1.1 Trading investments

1.1.1 Government and state enterprises securities 6116 53 12 6157

1.1.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 1642 1650

1.1.3 Marketable equity securities domestic _42 __3_

Total 8084 103 12 8175

Mi Allowance for revaluation 9i
Total

1.2 Available-for-sale investments

1.2.1 Government and state enterprises securities 52668 1408 54076

1.2.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 46 46

1.2.3 Foreign debt instruments 1398 1398

1.2.4 Marketable equity securities domestic 377 233 222 388

1.2.5 Others 237 238

Total 54726 1642 268 56100

Allowance for revaluation 1566

LM Allowance for impairment JI9Z

Total

1.3 Held-to-maturity debt instruments

1.3.1 Government and state enterprises securities 2400 2406

1.3.2 Private enterprise debt instruments 841 846

1.3.3 Foreign debt instruments 9B2

Total 422 11 A.2.34

1.4 General investments

1.4.1 Non-marketable equity securites domestic 248 248

Lns Allowance for impainnent J24

Total

Total Current Investments net
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 UNAUDITED

Million Baht

Consolidated

31 December 2008

Cost Value

Amortized Cost Value Unrealized Gain Unrealized Loss Fair Value

Long-term Investments

2.1 Available-for-sale investments

2.1.1 Government and state enterprises scunties 24222 608 24830

2.1.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 1193 19 1212

2.1.3 Foreign debt instruments 1538 33 1508

2.1.4 Marketable equity securities domestic _4 J2 132

Total 27041 676 35 27682

jj Allowance for revaluation _4i

Total 27.2 27.682

2.2 Held-to-maturity debt instruments

2.2.1 Government and state enterprises securities 4435 149 4584

2.2.2 Private enterprises debt instruments _54

Total 5019 149 584 4584

Allowance for impairment J54

Total 4435 4584

2.3 General investments

2.3.1 Non-marketable equity securities domestic 1786 134 1652

2.3.2 Non-marketable equity securities overseas 306 264 42

2.3.3 Investments in receivables 1M 422

Total 2832 716 2116

Allowance for impairment Jii

Total

Total Long-term Investments net
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 UNAUIMTED

Million Baht

Current hwestments

1.1 Trading investments

1.1.1 Government and state enterprises

1.1.2 Private enterprises debt instruments

1.1.3 Marketable equity securities domestic

Add Allowance for revaluation

1.2 Available-for-sale investments

1.2.1 Government and state enterprises securities

1.2.2 Private enterprises debt instruments

1.2.3 Foreign debt instruments

1.2.4 Marketable equity securities domestic

Ml Allowance for revaluation

Lss Allowance for impairment

1.3 Held-to-maturity debt instruments

1.3.1 Govermnent and state enterprises securities

1.3.2 Private enterprises debt instruments

1.3.3 Foreign debt instruments

1.4 General investments

1.4.1 Non-marketable equity securites domestic

Ls Allowance for impairment

Total Current Investments net

The Bank

31 March 2009

4646 12

715

256

5617 47

46

5.663

400

820

110

1.330

248

248

112.140

Cost Value

Amortized Cost Value Unrealized Gain Unrealized Loss

Total

Total

Total

1236

217

1460

100440

296

2842

377

103955

1384

192

105 147Total

Fair Value

4657

718

288

5663

5.663

101675

46 254

2845

22fl 373

268 105147

105.147

405

820

110

1.335

248

Total

Total
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 UNAUDITED

Million Baht

The Bank

31 March2009

Cost Value

Amortized Cost Value Unrealized Gain Unrealized Loss Fair Value

Long-term Investments

2.1 Available-for-sale investments

2.1.1 Government and state enterprises securities 66315 913 67228

2.1.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 943 19 962

2.1.3 Foreign debt instruments 1561 20 34 1547

2.1.4 Marketable equity securities domestic _141

Total 68904 1008 34 69878

Ads Allowance for revaluation _924

Total

2.2 Held-to-maturity debt instruments

2.2.1 Government and state enterprises securities 4305 118 4423

2.2.2 Private enterprises debt instruments

Total 4889 118 584 4423

Allowance for impairment J54

Total 42
2.3 General investments

2.3.1 Non-marketable equity securities domestic 1631 103 1528

2.3.2 Non-marketable equity securities overseas 306 264 42

2.3.3 Investments in receivables

Total 2627 671 1956

Allowance for impairment

Total

Total Long-term Investments net
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KASIKORNEANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED ANI SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIOD ENIED 31 MARCH 2009 UNAUDITED

Million Baht

The Bank

31 December2008

Cost Value

Amortized Cost Value Unrealized Gain Unrealized Loss Fair Value

Current Investments

1.1 Trading investments

1.1.1 Government and state enterprises 6116 53 12 6157

1.1.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 1642 1650

1.1.3 Marketable equity securities domestic 326 43 __3_2

Total 8084 104 12 8176

Allowance for revaluation 92

Total 8.176 _116

1.2 Available-for-sale investments

1.2.1 Government and state enterprises securities 52668 1408 54076

1.2.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 46 46

1.2.3 Foreign debt instruments 1398 1398

1.2.4 Marketable equity securities domestic 377 _232 22Z1 _L8I

Total 54489 1640 268 55861

jjAllowance for revaluation 1564

Ls Allowance for impairment 192

Total 55.861

1.3 Held-to-maturity debt instruments

1.3.1 Govermnent and state enterprises securities 2400 2406

1.3.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 841 846

1.3.3 Foreign debt instruments 982 982

Total 4.223 11 4.234

1.4 General investments

1.4.1 Non-marketable equity securities domestic 248 248

Allowance for impairment 248

Total

Total Current Investments net 68.260
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FiNANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 UNAUDITED

Million Baht

The Bank

31 December 2008

Cost Value

Amortized Cost Value Unrealized Gain Unrealized Loss Fair Value

Long-term Investments

2.1 Available-for-sale investments

2.1.1 Government and state enterprises securities 24221 608 24829

2.1.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 1193 19 1212

2.1.3 Foreign debt instruments 1538 33 1508

2.1.4 Marketable equity securities domestic 85 _13i

Total 27037 676 33 27680

Allowance for revaluation 643

Total 27.680

2.2 Held-to-maturity debt instruments

2.2.1 Government and state enterprises securities 4435 150 4585

2.2.2 Private enterprises debt instruments 584 54
Total 5019 150 584 4585

Allowance for impairment 584

Total 4.435

2.3 General investments

2.3.1 Non-marketable equity securities domestic 1639 103 1536

2.3.2 Non-marketable equity securities overseas 306 264 42

2.3.3 Investments in receivables
695

Total 2640 671 1969

Allowance for impairment 671

Total 1.969

Total Long-term Investments net
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KASIKORNEANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 UNAUDITED

As of 31 March 2009 and 31 December 2008 investments in held-to-maturity debt instruments which are government or

state enterprise securities included promissoly notes from TAMC of Baht 3305 million and Baht 3435 million respectively

Gain on investments presented in the statements of income for the three-month periods ended 31 March 2009 and 2008

consisted of

Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

2008 2008

Gain on disposal of investments

Held for trading investments 178 163 178 163

Available-for-sale investments 102 148 101 148

General investments 572 571

Investments in receivables

Total 281 921 272 882

Loss on disposal of investments

Held for trading investments 62 56 62 56

Available-for-sale investments 29 28

Total 62 85 62 84

Loss on revaluation of investments 42 27 42 27

Loss on impairment

Investments in securities 12 16

Investments in receivables Jfl 19 Jfl

Total Li 21 fl 16

Total Gain on Investments L7 128 114 255

Revaluation surplus on investments consisted of

Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

31 March 2009 31 December 2008 31 March 2009 31 December 2008

Revaluation surplus on investments

Debt instruments 2160 2005 2160 2005

Equity securities 196 201 198 203

Share of revaluation surplus in

subsidiaries and associated companies

using the equity method __2

Total 2207
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SU3SIDLRIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 UNAUIMTED

maturity analysis for debt instruments resulted in the following

Consolidated

Million Baht

31 March2009 31 December 2003

Available-for-sale investments

1.1 Government and state

enterprise securities

1.2 Private enterprise debt

Over

lyearto5 Qyr5

tyr

94050 67115 5590 166755 46233

1239 46

4.403 _L9

5590 172397 47677

529 2160 404

46 __41

.U9 174511 415

Over

lvearto5 Qygr

25222 5435 76890

1193 1239

L53

27953 5435 81065

734 867 2005

28.687 Q24

Held-to-maturity debt

instruments

2.1 Government and state

enterprise securities

2.2 Private enterprise debt

instruments 820

2.3 Foreign debt instruments J.E

Total 1330 3247

Allowance for impairment

Total L339 3242

Total Debt Instruments

841

110 932 92

1642 6219 4223 3377 1642 9242

534 584 5841 J541

15 5.635 422a 3312 i95 L5

ZJ22 1J 52258 ZQ4 7360 2L

Lyr ycar Itaal

instruments 296 943

1.3 Foreign debt instruments 2.842 Ji
Total 97188 69619

Add Allowance for revaluation 603 1028

Less Allowance for impairment 14 _--_

Total 91.145 2Q.41

400 3247 1058 4705 2400 3377 1058 6835

584 1404 584 1425

23



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO TILE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 UNAUDITED

The Bank

Million Baht

31 March 2009

Mihril-v

31 December 2008

Qxr

lyearto5 QY.L5

Over

lyearto5 QycrS

Available-for-sale investments

1.1 Government and state

Th iy yr

enterprise securities 94050 67115 5590 166755 46233 25222 5434 76889

1.2 Private enterprise debt

instruments 296 943

1.3 Foreign debt instruments .242 _L5i

Total 97188 69619

Add Allowance for revaluation 603 1028

Allowance for impailment .....j4

Total 774 70647

Held-to-maturity debt

instruments

1239 46 1193 1239

4.403 1.398

5590 172397 47677 27953 5434 81064

529 2160 404 734 867 2005

46 46 46

jj 174.511 48.035 2i7 Q1 8L2

2.1 Government and state

enterprise securities 400 3247 1058 4705 2400 3377 1058 6835

2.2 Private enterprise debt

instruments 820

2.3 Foreign debt instruments iii

Total 1330 3247

Less Allowance for impairment

Total L330 3.242

Total Debt Instruments 24

584 1404 841 584 1425

110 982

1642 6219 4223 3377 1642 9242

584

LQ5 5.635 4.223 L3217 L5I

7177 180146 52.258
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FTh4ANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE THREEMONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 UNAUDITED

Investments held by the Bank and its subsidiaries in financial institutions that were closed on December 1997 or

investments in listed companies which meet SETs criteria for delisting and are in default on debt instruments or companies

whose ability to continue as going concern is uncertain or unlisted companies whose financial position and operating results

are the same as companies which meet SETs criteria for delisting or investments in receivables with uncertainty in settlement

or in default were as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated

31 March 2009

Cost Value Book Value Fair Value

Investments Equity Debt Investments Equity Debt Allowance for

In Receivables Securities Instruments In Receivables Securities Instruments Imnairment

Closed financial institutions 131 131

Listed companies which meet

SETs criteria for delisting and

are in default on debt instruments

Companies whose
ability

to

continue as going concern is

uncertain or unlisted companies

whose financial position and

operating results are the same as

companies which meet

SETscriteriafordelisting 665 452 1117

Investment in receivables with

uncertainty in settlement

or in default 7Th 329 319

Total 71S 399
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FDIANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 UNAUDITED

Million Baht

Consolidated

31 December 2008

Cost Value Book Value Fair Value

Investments Equity Debt Investments Equity Debt Allowance for

In Receivables Securities Instruments In Receivables Securities Instruments Impairment

Closed financial institutions 131 131

Listed companies which meet

SETs criteria for delisting and

are in default on debt instruments

Companies whose ability to

continue as going concern is

uncertain or unlisted companies

whose financial position and

operating results are the same as

companies which meet

SETs criteria for delisting 646 498 1144

Investment in receivables with

uncertainty in settlement

or in default 722 419 303

Total 722 629 419 1.578
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KASIKORNIBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FIIANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR TIlE THREE-MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 UNAUDITED

Million Baht

The Bank

31 March2009

Cost Value Book Value Fair Value

Investments Equity Debt Investments Equity Debt Allowance for

In Receivables Securities Instruments In Receivables Securities Instruments Imnairment

Closed financial institutions 131 131

Listed companies which meet

SETs criteria for delisting and

are in default on debt instruments

Companies whose ability to

continue as going concern is

uncertain or unlisted companies

whose financial position and

operating results are the same as

companies which meet

SETscriteriafordelisting 665 452 1117

Investment in receivables with

uncertainty in settlement

or in default 674 310

Total 614 310
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SIJBSIDIARLES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 UNAUDITED

Million Baht

The Bank

31 December 2008

Cost Value Book Value Fair Value

Investments Equity Debt Investments Equity Debt Allowance for

In Receivables Securities Instruments In Receivables Securities Instruments Impairment

Closed financial institutions 131 131

Listed companies which meet

SETs criteria for delisting and

are in default on debt instruments

Companies whose ability to

continue as going concern is

uncertain or unlisted companies

whose fmancial position and

operating results are the same as

companies which meet

SETscriteriafordelisting 646 498 1144

Investment in receivables with

uncertainty in settlement

or in default 677 314 303

Total 611 129 314 1.578

For the three-month periods ended 31 March 2009 and 2008 changes in the investments in subsidiaries and associated companies

were as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

2009 2008 2009 2008

Net book value at January 214 589 9474 9357

Share of profit from investments on equity method 14

Establishment of new company

Effect from full consolidation 427

Dividend income 75

Reversal of allowance for impairment

Others

Net book value at 31 March 144 J55
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KASIKORNIBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 UNAUDITED

Investments in ordinary shares of subsidiaries and associated companies were as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

Investments

Shareholding

Type of Business Directly
and indirectly Cost method Equity method Cost method Dividend income

31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March 31 March

2909 290 2002 2005 2999 2008 2992 2995 2992 2008

Phethai Asset Management Co Ltd Asset Management 100.00o 100.00o 5998 5998

Kasikom Research Center Co Ltd Service 100.0000 100.0000

Kasikorn Asset Management Co Ltd Mutual Fund Management
100.000 100.00o 2003 2003 60

Kasikorn Securities Public Co Ltd Securities Business 99.99 99.99o 1312 1312 250

KssikornFactoringCo Ltd Lending l00.00o 100.00o 237 237

Kasikorn Leasing Co Ltd Lending 100.00o 100.00 900 900

Progress Land and Buildings Co Ltd Property Development 100.00o 100.00 639 639

KHAO KLA Venture Capital
Venture Capital

Management Co Ltd.0 Management 100.000 100.00o

K-SME Venture Capital Co Ltd Venture Capital 100.00a 100.00 200 200

Progress Gunpai Co Ltd Service 100.00 100.00 21 21

Progress Plus Co Ltd Service 100.00 100.00o

Progress Facilities Management Co Ltd Service 100.00o 100.0000

Progress Management Co Ltd Service 100.00o 100.00o

Progress Software Co Ltd Service 100.00 100.00o 19 19

Progress Storage Co Ltd Service 100.00o 100.00o

Progress Services Support Co Ltd Service 100.00o 100.00

The Bank holds 100.00 shares indirectly through Kasilcom Asset Management Co Ltd
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KASIKORNEANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSHMARJES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 IJNAUDITED

Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

Investments Investments

Shareholding

Type of Business Directly and indirectly Cost method Equity method Cost method Dsvsdend income

31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December 31 March 31 March

2102 2000 2002 1000 2002 2000 2002 2001 2002 2001

Progress Services Co Ltd Service 100.OOo 100.00o

Progress HRCo Ltd Service 100.00o 100.0Oo

Progress Appraisal Co Ltd Service 100.00o 100.00o

Progress Collection Co Ltd Service 100.OOo 100.000o

Goco Co Ltd Information and commumcatson

System Development 32.35o 32.35o

Processing Center Co Ltd Service 30.00s 30.00s 15 15 104 174 15 15 75

N.C Associate Co Ltd Trading 28.23s

Rural Capital Partners Co Ltd Venture Capital 27.50s 27.S0o

Lawson-Marsh Events Co Ltd.5 Venture Capital 35.71 35.71

SukhothaiLandCo.Ltd.55 VenloreCapital 20.00o 20.00o
10

10

Humanira Co.Ltd Software dessgn and development 21.60o 21.60o 13
13

2Spot Communscations Co Ltd Information and communication

System Development 2O.l70s 2O.l75s

Grand Hotel Co Ltd Hotel 20.00 20.00 3L5 .J5.5 ...fi ..3jj _Sli

Total 372 372 151 221 11742 11742 331 69

Less Allowance for impairment aid 1355 J2 .22 12.251 11251

Investments in Subasdiaries and Associated Companies Net il.fi 144 .214 424 424 331 69

The Bank holds shares indirectly through SME Venture Capslal Co Ltd
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 UNAUDITED

The recording of investments in subsidiaries and associated companies using the equity method in the consolidated

financial statements is based on fmancial information obtained from audited or unaudited fmancial statements and from

management information that has not been audited or reviewed by the auditors

As of 31 March 2009 and 31 December 2008 investments held by the Bank and its subsidiaries that were more than

10% of those companies shares and were not investments in subsidiaries and associated companies classified by

industry were as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

31 March 2009 31 December 2008 31 March 2009 31 December 2008

Manufacturing and commerce 20 20 20 20

Property development and construction 545 550 545 550

Infrastructure and services 276 276 271 271

Others _33_ 330

Total jfl
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 UNAUIITED

dThe financial position and results of operations of the Banks subsidiaries are set out below

Million Baht

Balance Sheets

31 March 2009 31 December 2008

Unaudited

Total Total Total

AsI Liabilities gjij1y Ata Liabilities twi1

Phethai Asset Management Co Ltd 4791 407 4384 4937 570 4367

Kasikorn Research Center Co Ltd 39 13 26 47 15 32

KasikornAssetManagementCo.Ltd 1012 239 773 1151 264 887

Kasikorn Securities Public Co Ltd 1162 479 683 1641 931 710

Kasikorn Factoring Co Ltd 4339 3809 530 4582 4085 497

Kasikom Leasing Co Ltd 37587 36761 826 34801 34006 795

Progress Land and Buildings Co Ltd 486 484 486 484

KHAO KLA Venture Capital Management Co Ltd

K-SME Venture Capital Co Ltd 196 196 197 197

Progress Gunpai Co Ltd 382 184 198 344 166 178

Progress Plus Co Ltd 85 49 36 121 86 35

Progress Facilities Management Co Ltd 34 17 17 34 20 14

Progress Management Co Ltd 39 13 26 38 31

Progress Software Co Ltd 266 78 188 280 123 157

Progress Storage Co Ltd 35 29 31 25

Progress Services Support Co Ltd 39 10 29 51 27 24

Progress Services Co Ltd 34 26 35 13 22

Progress HR Co Ltd 50 28 22 63 44 19

Progress Appraisal Co Ltd 87 21 66 101 35 66

Progress Collection Co Ltd fl
Total $j4 4L95 404S12

The Bank holds 100.00% of shares indirectly through Kasikorn Asset Management Co Ltd
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR TILE THREE-MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 LJNAUDITED

Million Baht except for Earnings Loss per Share

Statements of Income

For the Three-Month Periods Ended 31 March

2009

Unaudited

2008

Net Earnings

Profit Loss per

Net Earnings

Profit Loss per

Revenue Expenses Ls1 Share Baht Revenue Expenses LQ1 Share Baht

Phethai Asset Management Co Ltd

Kasikorn Research Center Co Ltd

Kasikorn Asset Management Co Ltd

Kasikom Securities Public Co Ltd

Kasikom Factoring Co Ltd

Kasikom Leasing Co Ltd

Progress Land and Buildings Co Ltd

KHAO KLA Venture Capital

Management Co Ltd

K-SME Venture Capital Co Ltd

Progress Gunpai Co Ltd

Progress Plus Co Ltd

Progress Facilities Management Co Ltd

Progress Management Co Ltd

Progress Software Co Ltd

Progress Storage Co Ltd

Progress Services Support Co Ltd

Progress Services Co Ltd

Progress HR Co Ltd

Progress Appraisal Co Ltd

Progress Collection Co Ltd

0.86

0.05

66 35 31 0.05

16 15 11.04

375 253 122 4.49

82 80 0.03

95 70 25 15.94

444 418 26 0.29

0.05

2.67

0.02

The Bank holds 100.00% of shares indirectly through Kasikorn Asset Management Co Ltd

28 11 17 0.03

16 19 25.31

407 271 136 5.01

58 91 33 0.54

94 61 33 20.75

681 649 32 0.35

0.04

131 112 19 97.53 99 85 14 70.11

86 84 6.73 85 83 9.99

26 24 35.69 20 19 29.46

18 17 21.61 17 16 15.23

133 117 16 162.15 55 65 10 96.85

17 12 159.06 10 89.61

35 31 113.70 34 28 155.72

58 54 220.61 44 41 210.77

129 125 425.85 106 103 275.16

55 54 123.17 54 49 1053.01

14 14 2.49

Total 1.605 U2
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KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 UNAUDITED

Disclosure of The Statements of Cash Flows of The Asset Management Company AMC

In accordance with the BoTs notification number Sor Nor Sor 01 Wor 3258/2543 dated 27 November 2000 relating

to the operational regulations of the asset management company the Bank is required to disclose the statements of

cash flows of the AMC in the notes to the financial statements The statements of cash flows of Phethai Asset

Management Co Ltd are as follows

Phethai Asset Management Company Limited

Statements of Cash Flows

For the three-Month Periods Ended 31 March 2009 and 2008

Unaudited

kA.1hr I.1t

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net profit

Adjustments to reconcile net profit from operating activities

Gain on transter of Changing Account

Loss on impairment of investments in receivables

Reversal of bad debt and doubtful accounts

Loss on debt restructuring

Interest income from amortization of revaluation allowance for debt restructuring

Amortization of intangible assets

Gain on investment in securities

Amortization of discount on promissoiy note receivables

Net income from interest and dividends

Reversal of loss on impairment of other assets

Increase decrease in accrued expenses

Interest and dividends received

Interest paid

Income tax paid

Net profit loss from operations before changes in operating assets and liabilities

2009 2008

17 31

18

23

11

14 23

22

12
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Phethai Asset Management Company Limited

Statements of Cash Flows Continued

For the three-Month Periods Ended 31 March 2009 and 2008

Unaudited

Million Baht

2009 2008

Decrease in operating assets

Investments in receivables 192

Loans and receivables 28 156

Properties foreclosed 71 318

Other assets 53 1412

Increase decrease in operating liabilities

Other liabilities 17

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 184 2060

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTWITIES

Proceeds from disposal of long-term investments

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash paid for repayment of borrowings from financial institutions 1.790

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities 1790

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
271

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 24 30

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period
__3-ll
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LOANS AND ACCRUED INTEREST RECEiVABLES

Loans and accrued interest receivables classified by account status

Million Baht

Consolidated

31 March 2009

Outstanding Debt

after Deduction of

Loans and Collateral Value Used for

Accrued Interest NPV of Cash Flow from Calculating Allowance for

Receivables Debtors or Sale of Collateral The Allowance Doubtful Accounts

Pass 803745 270028 2700

Special Mention 39049 8417 168

Sub-Standard 8707 3044 100 3044

Doubtful 5552 2303 100 2303

Doubtful of Loss 20769 11207 100 11207

Allowance established in

excess of BoT regulations 7458

Credit balance transaction 654

Total
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Million Baht

Consolidated

31 December 2008

Outstanding Debt

after Deduction of

Loans and Collateral Value Used for

Accrued Interest NPV of Cash Flow from Calculating Allowance for

Receivables Debtors or Sale of Collateral The Allowance Doubtful Accounts

pass 829220 303112 3031

Special Mention 41231 10974 219

Sub-Standard 5891 2350 100 2350

Doubtful 5790 2437 100 2437

Doubtfiilof Loss 22177 11954 100 11954

Allowance established in

excess of BoT regulations 6403

Credit balance transaction 1.185

Total 905A94 330.827
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Million Baht

The Bank

31 March2009

Outstanding Debt

after Deduction of

Loans and Collateral Value/ Used for

Accrued Interest NPV of Cash Flow from Calculating Allowance for

Receivables Debtors or Sale of Collateral The Allowance Doubtful Accounts

pass 806797 306391 3064

Special Mention 36529 8264 165

Sub-Standard 8345 3029 100 3029

Doubtful 5247 2264 100 2264

Doubtful ofLoss 18431 10362 100 10362

Allowance established in

excess of BoT regulations _fui32

Total 875.349 330.3 10

Million Baht

The Bank

31 December 2008

Outstanding Debt

after Deduction of

Loans and Collateral Value Used for

Accrued Interest NPV of Cash Flow from Calculating Allowance for

Receivables Debtors or Sale of Collateral The Allowance Doubtful Accounts

Pass 832450 337059 3371

Special Mention 38821 10782 216

Sub-Standard 5464 2332 100 2332

Doubtful 5523 2384 100 2384

Doubtful of Loss 19784 11089 100 11089

Allowance established in

excess of BoT regulations

Total 902.042 d2
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Unearned interest are as follows

Million Baht

31 March 2009 31 December 2008

The Bank and The Bank and

The Bank Subsidiaries The Bank Subsidiaries

Unearned interest 273 4908 322 4439

Non-performing loans NPL

According to the BoTs directive number SOR NOR SOR 68/255 dated August 2008 regarding the Preparation and

announcement of condensed report of assets and liabilities of commercial banks non-performing loans NPL gross are

defined as sub-standard quality loans being outstanding loans of sub-standard doubtful doubtful of loss and loss loan

accounts in accordance with the BoTs directive number SOR NOR SOR 31/2551 dated August 2008 regarding the

Classification and provision criteria of financial institution

Non-performing loans net NPL net refer to the non-perfonning loan value net of total allowances for doubtful accounts

In accordance with the BoTs regulations commercial banks are required to report the following information

Non-performing loans NPL gross

The ratio of NPL to total loans

Non-performing loans net NPL net

The ratio of NPL net to total loans after deduction of allowances for doubtful accounts
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Non-performing loans gross including financial institutions based on the above directive can be summarized as follows

Million Baht

31 March2009

The Bank and

The Bank Subsidiaries

Non-performing loans gross 31861 34834

Total loans used for NPL gross ratio calculation 941973 9444102

Ratio of total loans 3.38 3.69

Million Baht

31 December 2008

The Bank and

The Bank Subsidiaries

Non-performing loans gross 30630 33686

Total loans used for NPL gross ratio calculation 1088109 10903452

Ratio of total loans 2.81 3.09

Total loans used for NPL ratio calculation are loans to general customers as presented in the balance sheet and loans

to financial institutions as included in interbank and money market items

Excluding loans among related parties as of 31 March 2009 and 31 December 2008 amounting to Baht 40642

million and Baht 38366 million respectively
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Non-performing loans net including financial institutions based on the above directive can be summarized as

follows

Million Baht

31 March2009

The Bank and

The Bank Subsidiaries

Non-performing loans net 14989 17064

Total loans used for NPL net ratio calculation 925101 9266412

Ratio of total loans 1.62 1.84

Million Baht

31 December 2008

The Bank and

The Bank Subsidiaries

Non-performing loans net 13591 15712

Total loans used for NPL net ratio calculation 1071070 10723712

Ratio of total loans 1.27 1.47

Total loans used for NPL net ratio calculation are loans to general customers as presented in the balance sheet and

loans to financial institutions as included in interbank and money
market item after deduction of allowance for

doubtful accounts of such loans

Excluding loans among related parties as of 31 March 2009 and 31 December 2008 amounting to Baht 40642

million and Baht 38366 million respectively
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Non-accrual loans gross including fmancial institutions based on the accrual basis can be summarized as follows

Million Baht

31 March 2009

Phethai AMC KasikomKasikomThe Bank and

The Bank Original principals Factoring Leasing Subsidiaries

Non-accrual loans 58831 1963 900 291 61985

Total loans used for ratio

Calculation 941973 1963 36685 4431 9444102

Percentage of total loans 6.25 100.00 2.45 6.56 6.56

Million Baht

31 December 2008

Phethai AMC Kasikorn Kasikorn The Bank and

The Bank Original principals Factoring Leasing Subsidiaries

Non-accrual loans 58059 2065 292 843 61259

Total loans used for ratio

CalculationW 1088109 2065 4663 33874 1090345

Percentageoftotalloans 5.34 100.00 6.26 2.49 5.62

Total loans used for NPL ratio calculation are loans to general customers as presented in the balance sheet and loans to

financial institutions as included in interbank and money market items

Excluding loans among related parties as of 31 March 2009 and 31 December 2008 amounting to Baht 40642 million

and Baht 38366 million respectively
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Loans to listed companies that meet SETs criteria for delisting were as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated

31 March 2009 31 December 2008

Loans and Allowance Loans and Allowance

Accrued for Accrued for

Interest Collateral Doubtful Interest Collateral Doubtful

Receivables Accounts Receivables Lame Accounts

Listed companies which

meet SETs

criteria for delisting 382 29 349 348 65 219

Million Baht

The Bank

31 March 2009 31 December 2008

Loans and Allowance Loans and Allowance

Accrued for Accrued for

Interest Collateral Doubtful Interest Collateral Doubtful

Receivables La1i Accounts Receivables Lahi Accounts

Listed companies which

meet SETs

criteria fordelisting 382 29 349 348 65 219

The outstanding balances of loans to the Banks wholly owned subsidiaries were as follows

Million Baht

31 March2009

Type of loans Maturity Interest rate Amount

Phethai Asset Management Co Ltd Bills Months 3-Month Fixed Deposit 345

Kasikom Factoring Co Ltd Bills 1-6 Months Money Market Rate 1625

Spread 1% at least

Bills At Call Money Market Rate 515

Spread 1% at least

Loans 1-4Years FixedRate 1580

Kasikorn Leasing Co Ltd Bills 7-120 Days Money Market Rate 750

Loans 1-5 Years Fixed Rate 35564
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Million Baht

31 December 2008

Type of loans Maturity Interest rate Amount

Phethai Asset Management Co Ltd Bills Months 3-Month Fixed Deposit 530

Kasikom Factoring Co Ltd Bills 1-6 Months Money Market Rate 1435

Spread 1% at least

Bills At Call Money Market Rate 1000

Spread 1% at least

Loans 1-4 Years Fixed Rate 1550

Kasikom Leasing Co Ltd Bills 7-120 Days Money Market Rate 900

Loans 1-6 Years Fixed Rate 32809
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Transferring of Sub-Standard Quality Assets to Thai Asset Management Corporation TAMC

In accordance with the Emergency Decree on the Thai Asset Management Corporation B.E 2544 on 12 October 2001 the

Bank signed an Asset Transfer Agreement with TAMC to transfer eligible sub-standard quality assets outstanding as of

31 December 2000 to TAMC All rights and duties associated with each transferred sub-standard quality asset were

transferred to TAMC at price determined by the appraised value of the underlying collateral assets provided that the price

did not exceed the book value of credits extended less existing provisions outstanding as required by law on the transfer date

TAMC has 180 days from the date of each transfer to examine any transferred assets TAMC will then quote the transfer price

within days after the end of the examination period After confinning the price TAMC will issue non-transferable 10-year

callable promissoly notes guaranteed by FIDF The notes bear interest equal to the weighted average of the deposit rates of

five major banks and are paid at the end of each year by means of non-transferable extendable one-year promissory note

guaranteed by FIDF The rights to these notes and the received notes are included in investments in held-to-maturity debt

instnjments

In accordance with the Emergency Decree B.E 2544 and the Asset Transfer Agreement TAMC and the Bank will share

jointly the profits and responsibility for any losses on transferred assets which are payable on the fifth and the tenth

anniversaries of the transfers starting from July 2001 In the case of losses the Bank will first be responsible for any loss

not exceeding 20% of the transfer price The second portion of losses again not exceeding 20% of the transfer price will be

equally shared by TAMC and the Bank Any remaining loss would then be absorbed by TAMC In addition expenses of

TAMC are included in the calculation of the gain or loss sharing In the case of profit the first portion of profits up to 20% of

the transfer price is to be shared equally by TAMC and the Bank Should there be any profit over and above this the Bank is

entitled to the remainder up to the gross book value of the assets less the transfer price and the Banks share in the first portion

of the profits As of 31 March 2009 and 31 December 2008 the Bank has set up an estimate for loss sharing amounting to Baht

1100 million

For the three month period ended 31 March 2009 the Bank did not transfer any sub-standard quality assets to TAMC The

gross book value of the assets transferred before deducting allowance for doubtful accounts up to 31 March 2009 was Baht

14557 million and the estimated total transfer price up to 31 March 2009 was Baht 10072 million which the Bank received

promissory notes from TAMC

As at 31 March 2009 the Bank was informed that loss sharing amounting to Baht 29 million was allocated to the Bank from

TAMC
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TROUBLED DEBT RESTRUCTURING

For the three-month periods ended 31 March 2009 and 2008 the Bank and its subsidiaries engaged in debt restructuring

contracts as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

2QQ9 2Q

Total Total Total Total

Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding

Debt Before Debt Before Debt Before Debt Before

casa Restructuring Restructuring aaa Restructuring Restructuring

Debt restructuring contracts

that incurred losses 355 7197 304 2283 353 7194 285 2213

Debt restructuring contracts

that incurred no losses 992 15.517 L126 94 9.499 15.54 .Q2 921

Total 714 22.2 L1M
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Losses on debt restructuring for the three-month periods ended 31 March 2009 and 2008 were as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated

31 March 2009

The Outstanding Debt Transferred Assets Loss on

Before After Debt

Types of Restructuring Restructuring Restructurin Iype Fair Value Restructuring

Transfers of assets 32 218 Cash land 169 49

premises

and investments

Changes of repayment conditions 296 4266 4266 730

Debt restructuring in various forms 27 2713 2372 Cash land 341 233

premises

and investments

Total 355 510

Million Baht

Consolidated

31 March2008

The Outstanding Debt Transferred Assets Loss on

Before After Debt

Types of Restructuring Restructuring Restructuring Iype Fair Value Restructuring

Transfers of assets 44 225 Cash land 169 56

premises

and investments

Changes of repayment conditions 251 1836 1826 324

Debt restructuring in various forms 222 185 Cash land 38 34

premises

and investments

Total 304 2.283 202 414
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Million Baht

The Bank

31 March2009

The Outstanding Debt Transferred Assets Loss on

Before After Debt

Tynes of Restructuring Cases Restructuring Restructuring lypes Fair Value Restructuring

Transfers of assets 32 218 Cash land 169 49

premises

and investments

Changes of repayment conditions 296 4266 4266 730

Debt restructuring in various forms 25 2710 2369 Cash land 341 233

premises

and investments

Total 353 LQ 1012

Million Baht

The Bank

31 March2008

The Outstanding Debt Transferred Assets Loss on

Before After Debt

Types of Restructuring Restructuring Restructuring Iypgs Fair Value Restructuring

Transfers of assets 30 189 Cash land 145 43

premises

and investments

Changes of repayment conditions 246 1802 1802 314

Debt restructuring in various forms 222 185 Cash land 38 34

premises

and investments

Total 25

The Bank and its subsidiaries measure the expected recoverable amounts of loans restructured by changing repayment

conditions by using the present value of future cash flows discounted by the market rate
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The terms of debt restructuring agreements with debts which were restructured by changing the repayment conditions

and restructured in various other ways and which resulted in losses on debt restructuring during the three-month periods

ended 31 March are as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated

2Q2

The Outstanding Debt The Outstanding Debt

Terms of debt Before After End of Before After End of

restructuring agreements Restructuring Restructuring iriQd Restructuring Restructuring irid

Less than years 246 2457 2171 2348 228 1874 1827 1802

5tolOyears 51 4420 4365 4362 16 132 132 132

Over 10 years 26 i02 iQ2 JQ2 52 52 _52

Total 323 2QII

Million Baht

The Bank

2Q

The Outstanding Debt The Outstanding Debt

Terms of debt Before After End of Before After End of

restructuring agreements Caa Restructuring Restructuring rid Restructuring Restructuring Purnid

Less than years 244 2454 2168 2145 224 1841 1803 1783

5toloyears 51 4420 4365 4362 15 132 132 132

Over 10 years iQ2 112 102

Total 321 6635 6.609 25 ZQl

The Bank and its subsidiaries recognized interest income from debt restructuring for the three-month periods ended 31 March

as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

2009 2008 2009 2008

Debt restructuring contracts that incurred losses 238 115 238 114
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The Bank had commitments to extend additional loans to these borrowers as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated and The Bank

31 March 2009 31 December 2008

Debt restructuring contracts that incurred losses 203 181

The Bank and its subsidiaries had outstanding balances on debtors which were restructured as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

31 March 2009 31 December 2008 31 March 2009 31 December 2008

Debt restructuring contracts that incurred losses 6612 13093 6609 13088

Debt restructuring contracts that incurred no losses 1322_4 2L222 i3.222

Total 4S 4S1

The Bank and its subsidiaries had outstanding balances relating to all restructured debtors which had been performing

in accordance with debt restructuring agreements as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

31 March 2009 31 December 2008 31 March 2009 31 December 2008

Debt restructuring contracts that incurred losses 20581 17585 20553 17557

Debt restructuring contracts that incurred no losses 3JJ9 3ii34 31d5

Total
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ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

The movements in the allowance for doubtful accounts during the period were as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated

31 March2009

Allowances

Established in

Special Sub- Doubtful Excess of BoTs

Paas Mention Standard Doubtful of Loss Regulations Iota

Balance at beginning of the period 3031 219 2350 2437 11954 6403 26394

Doubtful accounts reversal 331 50 694 135 275 1055 1508

Baddebtswrittenoff 1536 1536

Others _5_14 jj4

Balance at the end of the period J9

Before deducting bad debts recovered of Baht 118 million

With effect from January 2009 bad debts recovery is recognised as income and is presented net of bad debt and doubtful accounts

expense in the statement of income

Million Baht

Consolidated

31 December 2008

Allowances

Established in

Special Sub- Doubtful Excess of BoTs

Eaaa Mention Standard Doubtful of Loss Regulations Total

Balance at beginning of the year 3302 85 2505 5863 8906 3556 24217

Transferred from investments in

receivables

Doubtful accounts reversal 270 137 155 3426 5432 2864 4582

Bad debts recovered 490 490

Bad debts written off 4322 4326

Others i442 J.i1

Balance at the end of the year
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Million Baht

The Bank

31 March2009

Allowances

Established in

Special Sub- Doubtful Excess of BoTs

Mention Standard Doubtful of Loss Regulations IQIal

Balance at beginning of the period 3371 216 2332 2384 11089 5733 25125

Doubtful accounts reversal 307 51 697 120 242 1004 1465

Bad debt written off 1507 1507

Others 538

Balance at the end of the period 1Q

Before deducting bad debts recovered of Baht 111 million

With effect from January 2009 bad debts recovery is recognised as income and is presented net of bad debt and doubtful accounts

expense in the statement of income

Million Baht

The Bank

31 December 2008

Allowances

Established in

Special Sub- Doubtful Excess of BoTs

ias Mention Standard Doubtful of Loss Regulations

Balance at beginning of the year 3553 74 2477 5847 7813 2853 22617

Doubtful accounts reversal 182 142 145 3463 5224 2880 4456

Bad debt recovered 490 490

Bad debt written off 4044 4044

Others

Balance at the end of the year 216
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REVALUATION ALLOWANCE FOR DEBT RESTRUCTURING

The movements in the revaluation allowance for debt restructuring during the periodlyear were as follows

Million Baht

Balance at beginning of the period year

increase

Change of classification

Amortization to interest income

Others

Balance at the end of the period year

Consolidated

31 March 2009 31 December 2008

3378 1635

935 3149

The Bank

31 March 2009 31 December 2008

3378 1630

935 3148

10 CLASSIFIED ASSETS

Assets of the Bank and its subsidiaries classified as investments loans and accrued interest receivable including

financial institutions properties foreclosed and other assets were categorized by quality in compliance with the BoTs

regulations taking into account analyses of each loan and appraisal of the financial standing of each borrower as

follows

Million Baht

Pass

Special Mention

Sub-Standard

Doubtful

Doubtful of Loss

Total

Loans and Accrued

Investments Interest Receivables

877723

38824

8707

5552

20.769

Consolidated

31 March2009

Properties

Foreclosed Other Assets lotal

4i 26.327

Mi

71 168 71 166

i52 1.235 L52 1.234

2i 3.378 3716 3.378

4J21

4J21

877723

38824

8707

5552
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Million Baht

Consolidated

31 December 2008

Loans and Accrued Properties

Investments Interest Receivables Foreclosed Other Assets Tciai

Pass 1020363 1020363

Special Mention 40992 40992

Sub-Standard 5891 5891

Doubtful 5790 5790

Doubtful of Loss 4132 22.177 985 586 27.880

Total 4132 9S 58 1.100.916

Million Baht

The Bank

31 March2009

Loans and Accrued Properties

Investments Interest Receivables Foreclosed Other Assets IoIi

Pass 873809 873809

Special Mention 36304 36304

Sub-Standard 8345 8345

Doubtful 5247 5247

Doubtful of Loss 4Q2 18.431 578 592 23.680

Total 42J 575 592

Million Baht

The Bank

31 December 2008

Loans and Accrued Properties

Investments Interest Receivables Foreclosed Other Assets Total

Pass 1018897 1018897

Special Mention 38582 38582

Sub-Standard 5464 5464

Doubtful 5523 5523

Doubtful of Loss 19.784 716 25.168

Total 1.088.250 71f 553
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11 SHARE CAPITAL AND EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the consolidated and the Bank-only basic earnings per share for the three month period ended

31 March 2009 was based on profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of Baht 3800 million and Baht 3883 million

respectively 2008 Baht 4438 million and Baht 4238 million respectively and the weighted average number of

ordinary shares outstanding for the three month period ended 31 March 2009 of 2393260193 shares 2008

2392759964 shares

For the three month period ended 31 March 2009 the Bank did not issues ordinary shares

The calculation of the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the three month period ended 31

March 2008 is as follows

Consolidated and The Bank

Number of the weighted average

number of ordinary shares

Share Capital
Shares

Number of shares Amount Million Baht For the three month period

Ended 31 March 2008

Issued ordinary shares as of January 2008 2388202317 23882 2388202317

Add

The Bank
registered

the change in its

paid-up share capital as result of the

increases in paid-up capital from the

exercise of warrants for ordinary shares

which were issued and offered for sale

to Bank employees except for directors

ZQQ

11 January 5.057.876 4.557.647

Issued ordinary shares

as of3l March 2008 2.393.260.193
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12 CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

The ratios of capital to assets Capital Adequacy Ratio as of 31 March 2009 and 31 December 2008 were

calculated from the financial statements of the Bank The Bank has chosen to adopt the Standardized Approach in

compliance with Basel II Accord which is consistent with the BoT requirements

Million Baht

31 March 2009 31 December 2008

Tier Capital

Issued and
fully paid up share capital premiums on

share capital 42036 42036

Legal reserves 2920 2920

Net income after appropriation 48.608 48.608

Total Tier Capital 93564 93.564

Tier Capital

Surplus on land revaluation 4585 4587

Surplus on premises revaluation 2168 2191

Surplus on marketable equity securities revaluation 91 91

Provision for normal assets 9807 9124

Subordinated debentures 33.519 33519

Total Tier Capital 50.170 49.512

Total Capital

The BoTs regulations requires that banks registered in Thailand maintain ratio of capital funds to assets and

contingencies of not less than 8.5% and that tier-i capital must not be less than 4.25% of such assets and

contingencies Capital adequacy ratios maintained by the Bank were as follows

Percentage

31 March 2009 31 December 2008

Total Capital 15.63 15.05

Tier-i Capital 10.17 9.84
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13 ASSETS PLEDGED AS COLLATERAL

Assets pledged as collateral consisted of

Million Baht

Consolidated and The Bank

31 March 2009 31 December 2008

Deposits 2400 2433

State enterprise bonds

Total

The Bank has pledged these assets as collateral for derivatives for electricity consumption for court collateral and

for repurchase agreements
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14 CONTINGENCIES

Contingencies consisted of

Million Baht

Consolidated

31 March 2009 31 December 2008

Baht Foreign Currency lola aht Foreign Currency lola

Avals on bills 1594 1594 1343 1343

Letters of indemnity-

borrowing 175 178 219 221

Other guarantees 78418 7338 85756 75458 8022 83480

Letters of credit 1261 15952 17213 1084 16081 17165

Exchange rate agreements

Purchase agreements 45184 259948 305132 51543 318468 370011

Sale agreements 51274 273724 324998 40088 340229 380317

Interest rate agreements

Purchase agreements 604501 68025 672526 567180 66646 633826

Sale agreements 604047 68025 672072 566726 66646 633372

Credit Default Swap 100 888 988 100 874 974

Unused credit line of

overdraft 145831 145831 140491 140491

Others 3.076 7.302 10.378 4.891 8.820 13.711

Total fl 2.236.666 826.005 2224211
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Million Baht

The Bank

31 March 2009 31 December 2008

Bait Foreign Currency Liti Bait Foreign Currency Isiti

Avals on bills 1594 1594 1343 1343

Letters of indemnity-

borrowing 175 178 219 221

Other guarantees 78418 7338 85756 75458 8022 83480

Letters of credit 1261 15952 17213 1084 16081 17165

Exchange rate agreements

Purchase agreements 45184 259948 305132 51543 318468 370011

Sale agreements 51274 273724 324998 40088 340229 380317

Interest rate agreements

Purchase agreements 604501 68025 672526 567180 66646 633826

Sale agreements 604047 68025 672072 566726 66646 633372

Credit Default Swap 100 888 988 100 874 974

Unused credit line of

overdraft 145831 145831 140491 140491

Others 2.816 7.302 10.118 4.616 8.820 13.436

Total 1535.029
826.005 2.274.636

Under nonnal business operations the Bank is defendant in various litigation against the Bank These include cases of

wrongful acts brought against the Bank with total claims amounting to Baht 9934 million and Baht 9937 million as of

31 March 2009 and 31 December 2008 respectively The Management believes that any liability resulting from this

litigation will not be material to the Banks fmancial position or to the results of its operations
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15 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AN BALANCES

Loans and contingencies made to officers0 and to business entities where the Bank and its subsidiaries their

directors or officers hold 10% or more of their paid-up capital are summarized as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated

31 March 2009 31 December 2008

End of Period End of Year

Loans

Officers 17

Business entities where the Bank and subsidiaries

their directors or officers hold 10% or more

of the paid up capital2 L7 785

Total 282 802

Contingencies

Officers

Business entities where the Bank and subsidiaries

their directors or officers hold 10% or more

of the paid up capital __u 22

Total 22

Officers include directors managers and those who hold management positions department head level and

above in the Financial Accounting Management and Financial Planning Departments

Transactions occurring between the Bank and related business entities are charged at market price as with other

normal business
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Million Baht

The Bank

31 March 2009 31 December 2008

End of Penod End of Year

Loans

Officers 17

Business entities where the Bank

its directors or officers hold 10% or more

of the paid up capital 4iJ

Total

Contingencies

Officers

Business entities where the Bank

its directors or officers hold 10% or more

ofthepaid-upcapital 27 36

Total 22

Trsnsactions occurring between the Bank and related business entities are charged at market price as with other normal

business

61



KASIKORNBANK PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE IITERIM FDIANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2009 UTAUDITED

Related Parties

Relationships between the Bank and other business entities where control exists consisted of

Type of Shareholding

Company Name Relationship Directly and Indirectly

31 March 31 December

Type of share Type of Business

KHAO KLA Venture Capital

Management Co Ltd

Kasikorn Asset Management Co Ltd directly and indirectly
holds 100% shares in KHAO KLA Venture Capital Management Co Ltd

2009 2008

Phethai Asset Management Co Ltd Subsidiaiy 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Asset Management

Kasikorn Research Center Co Ltd Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Service

Kasikorn Asset Management Co Ltd Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Mutual Fund

Management

Kasikorn Securities Public Co Ltd Subsidiary 99.99% 99.99% Ordinary share Securities Business

Kasikorn Factoring Co Ltd Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Lending

Kasikom Leasing Co Ltd Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Lending

Progress Land and Buildings Co Ltd Subsidiary 100 .00% 100.00% Ordinary share Property Development

Venture Capital

Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Management

K-SME Venture Capital Co Ltd Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Venture Capital

Progress Gunpai Co Ltd Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Service

Progress Plus Co Ltd Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Service

Progress Facilities Management Co Ltd Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Service

Progress Management Co Ltd Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Service

Progress Software Co Ltd Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Service

Progress Storage Co Ltd Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Service

Progress Service Support Co Ltd Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Service

Progress Service Co Ltd Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Service

Progress HR Co Ltd Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Service

Progress Appraisal Co Ltd Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Service

Progress Collection Co Ltd Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00% Ordinary share Service
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Significant transactions occurring between the Bank and the Asset Management Company are summarized as follows

Million Baht

The Bank

31 March 2009 31 December 2008

Loans

Subsidiaiy Companies

Phethai Asset Management Co Ltd

Beginning of the period/year 530 3745

Deduction 3.215

Ending of the period/year

Accrued interest receivables

Subsidiary Companies

Phethai Asset Management Co Ltd

Deposits

Subsidiary Companies

Phethai Asset Management Co Ltd 26 26

Million Baht

The Bank

For the Three-Month Periods Ended 31 March

2009 2008

Interest income

Subsidiary Companies

Phethai Asset Management Co Ltd 16

Loans to Phethai Asset Management Company Limited are 3-month bills with interest rates equal to the interest rate of

3-month fixed deposit Deposits were pledged as collateral As of 31 March 2009 and 31 December 2008 the pledged

deposits were Baht million and Baht 18 million respectively

As at 31 March 2009 and 31 December 2008 the Bank has provided an allowance for doubtful accounts for Phethai

Asset Management Company Limited classified as normal loans amounting to Baht million and Baht million

respectively

Income and expenses shared between the Bank and Phethai Asset Management Company Limited are charged at cost

except for fee income which is charged at market price

The Bank has provided an allowance for doubtful accounts for related business entities using the same method as for

general customers and in accordance with the BoTs regulations
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Additional transactions occurring between the Bank and related business entities which are charged at market

price as with other normal business or the price as stipulated in the agreement are as follows

4.1 Assets liabilities and contingencies between the Bank its subsidiary and associated companies are summajized

as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December

Subsidiary Companies

Kasikorn Leasing Co Ltd 36314 33709

Kasikorn Factoring Co Ltd 3720 3985

QtheLA

Subsidiary Company

Kasikorn Asset Management Co Ltd 46 39

Deposits

Subsidiary Companies

KasikornLeasingCo.Ltd 391 187

Kasikorn Asset Management Co Ltd 283 142

Progress Gunpai Co Ltd 208 214

Kasikom Factoring Co Ltd 95 111

Progress Software Co Ltd 82 73

Progress Appraisal Co Ltd 49 65

K-SME Venture Capital Co Ltd 48 58

KasikornResearchCenterCo.Ltd 31 37

Progress Services Co Ltd 31 32

Progress HR Co Ltd 30 34

Progress Land and Buildings Co Ltd 28 27

Progress Plus Co Ltd 26 53

Progress Service Support Co Ltd 23 48

Progress Facilities Management Co Ltd 22 25

Progress Storage Co Ltd 20 23

Progress Management Co Ltd 16 27

Associated Company

Processing Center Co Ltd 16 17 16 17
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Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December

2009 2008 2009 2008

Interbank and Money Market Items Liabilities

Subsidiary Company

Kasikom Securities Public Co Ltd 513 518

Borrowings

Subsidiaiy Companies

Kasikorn Asset Management Co Ltd 443 615

Kasikom Leasing Co.Ltd 289 111

Other Liabilities

Subsidiary Companies

Progress Sofiware Co Ltd 142 161

Progress Plus Co Ltd 42 50

Progress Management Co Ltd 18

Progress Appraisal Co Ltd 15 14

Progress Service Support Co Ltd 11

Progress HR Co Ltd 18

Kasikom Securities Public Co Ltd 11

Contingencies

Subsidiary Company

Kasikorn Factoring Co Ltd 14 15
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Certain subsidiaries and associated companies have entered into 2-year building lease agreements with the Bank

Rentals are charged at cost plus incremental from additional administration and maintenance expenditures incurred As

of 31 March 2009 and 31 December 2008 the Bank and its related parties have rental agreements with remaining

tenures amounting to Baht 14 million and Baht 18 million respectively

The Bank and certain subsidiaries have entered into 5-year car leasing agreements with Kasikom Leasing Co Ltd Such

agreements are classified as finance lease agreements charged at market rates As at 31 March 2009 and 31 December

2008 the book value of finance lease liabilities before elimination amounts to Baht 296 million and Baht 129 million

respectively

The Bank entered into an Information Technology Service Agreement with Progress Software Co Ltd under which

the service will be provided until 31 December 2010 As of 31 March 2009 and 31 December 2008 the Bank is

committed to pay total service fees of Baht 39 million and Baht 45 million respectively

4.2 Revenue and expenses occurring between the Bank its subsidiaries and associated companies for the three-month

periods ended 31 March are summarized as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

2009 2008 2009 2008

Subsidiary Companies

Revenue

Interest income 404 302

Dividend income 250 60

Fee income 115 106

Other income 14 15

Expenses

Interest expenses
13

Personnel expenses
204 186

Other expenses
498 305

Associated Companies

Expenses

Other expenses 16 16

The Bank entered into staff secondment agreement with Kasikorn Securities Public Company Limited

commencing from January 2006 The agreement shall be terminated at any time by the Bank giving notice 60 days

prior to the termination date The Bank is responsible for salaries welfare and other benefits and any liabilities that

arise or may arise from the actions of the employees
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For the three-month periods ended 31 March 2009 and 2008 the Bank incurred expenses amounting to Baht 204

million and Baht 186 million respectively presented as personnel expenses in the statements of income

4.3 Assets liabilities and contingencies between the Bank and other business entities in which the directors key

executive officers and close members of their families have significant influence were summarized as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated and The Bank

31 March 2009 31 December 2008

Jutha Maritime Public Co Ltd 643 669

Bangkok Glass Industiy Co Ltd 300 300

Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Co Ltd 128 111

Yip In Tsoi Jacks Ltd 53

Deposits

Muang Thai Life Assurance Co Ltd 499 469

Semi Suk Public Co Ltd 384 538

Muang Thai Insurance Public Co Ltd 374 376

Thai British Security Printing Public Co Ltd 181 138

Phatra Leasing Public Co Ltd 161

Mitsubishi Elevator Asia Co Ltd 90 87

Smithithada Co Ltd 69 70

Nithi Thanirong Co Ltd 46 45

The Deves Insurance Public Co Ltd 36 22

Semisuk Beverage Co Ltd 30 16

National ITMX Co Ltd 21 19

Bangkok Glass Industry Co Ltd 17 73

Zin Suapa Co Ltd 10

Infomax System Solutions Services Co Ltd 21

As of3l December 2008 the company was not related to the Bank
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Million Baht

Consolidated and The Bank

31 March 2009 31 December 2008

Contingencies

Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Co Ltd 1324 1514

Quality Houses Public Co Ltd 207 207

-Yip In Tsoi Jacks Ltd 128 108

Dole Thailand Co Ltd 113 150

Thai British Security Printing Public Co Ltd 39 44

Jutha Maritime Public Co Ltd 31 30

Samart Telcom Public Co Ltd 30 30

Bangkok Glass Industiy Co Ltd 10 14

4.4 Assets liabilities and contingencies between the Bank and its directors and key executive officers or the Banks

employees who have authority and responsibility for planning directing and controlling the activities of the

Bank are summarized as follows

Million Baht

Consolidated and The Bank

31 March 2009 31 December 2008

Loans 21

Deposits 600 1370
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16 EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

On April 2009 the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of the Bank approved the following resolutions

to pay dividends from the operating results of 2008 at the rate of Baht 2.00 per share totaling Baht 4787

million which was paid on 25 September 2008 at the rate of Baht 0.50 per share totaling Baht 1197 million

and the remaining dividends at the rate of Baht 1.50 per share totaling Baht 3590 million which was paid on

17 April 2009

to acquire additional 19191635 ordinary shares of Muang Thai Fortis Holding Co Ltd at price of not more

than Baht 7244 million in order to increase the percentage of share holding by the Bank from 10% to not less

than 51% in Muang Thai Fortis Holding Co Ltd Such resolution also approved the entering of connected

transaction to purchase additional ordinary shares of Muang Thai Fortis Holding Co Ltd and acquisition of

the ordinary shares from existing shareholders who are connected to the Bank

On April 2009 the Bank invested in Progress Training Co Ltd company registered in the Kingdom of

Thailand The companys main business is offering of training services to develop the skills of the employees of

the Bank and its subsidiaries

17 THE FINANCIAL POSITIONS AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS DIFFERENTIATED BY DOMESTIC

AND FOREIGN BUSINESS

The fmancial positions and results of operations differentiated by domestic and foreign business can be

summarized as follows

Financial Position Classified by Types of Business

Million Baht

Consolidated

31 March2009

Domestic Foreign Eliminated

Business Business Thta1 Transactions IQIai

Total assets 1209072 9710 1218782 920 1217862

Interbank and money
market items net assets 71565 1813 73378 73378

Investmentsnet 184325 4501 188826 188826

Loans 876756 386 877142 877142

Deposits 914040 66 914106 914106

Tnterbank and money market items liabilities 12586 12586 12586

Borrowings 106078 7079 113157 113157

Contingencies 2264200 15098 2279298 42632 2236666
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Million Baht

Consolidated

31 December 2008

Domestic Foreign Eliminated

Business Business Total Transactions Itai

Total assets 1295323 9605 1304928 1374 1303554

Interbank and money market items net assets 194541 1759 196300 196300

Investmentsnet 99058 3887 102945 102945

Loans 903680 328 904008 904008

Deposits 967939 11 967950 967950

Interbank and money market items liabilities 16300 16300 16300

Borrowings 131197 6962 138159 138159

Contingencies 2293303 23540 2316843 41932 2274911

Million Baht

The Bank

31 March 2009

Domestic Foreign Eliminated

Business Business lutal Transactions Iota

Total assets 1209659 9710 1219369 920 1218449

Interbank and money market items-net assets 71934 1813 73747 73747

Investments net 193252 4501 197753 197753

Loans 873665 386 874051 874051

Deposits 914993 66 915059 915059

Interbank and money market items liabilities 13129 13129 13129

Borrowings 106202 7079 113281 113281

Contingencies 2263939 15099 2279038 42632 2236406
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Million Baht

The Bank

31 December 2008

Domestic Foreign Eliminated

Business Business ii Transactions Total

Total assets 1295321 9605 1304926 1374 1303552

Interbank and money market items-net assets 194949 1759 196708 196708

Investmentsnet 107931 3887 111818 111818

Loans 900259 328 900587 900587

Deposits 968777 11 968788 968788

Interbank and money market items liabilities 16852 16852 16852

Borrowings 131015 6962 137977 137977

Contingencies 2293028 23540 2316568 41932 2274636

Results of Operations Classified by Types of Business

Million Baht

Consolidated

For the Three-Month Period Ended 31 March 2009

Domestic Foreign Eliminated

Business Business Total Transactions Total

Interest and dividend income 15499 86 15585 75 15510

Interest expense 4.54 UL L751 4.254

Net income expense from interest and dividend 10845 89 10756 10756

Non-interest income 5482 189 5671 5671

Non-interest expense j92 35

Income before income tax 4QZ
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Million Baht

Consolidated

For the Three-Month Period Ended 31 March 2008

Domestic Foreign Eliminated

Business Business Ii Transactions Thta

Interest and dividend income 13823 292 14115 197 13918

Interest expense
U221 362

Net income expense from interest and dividend 10257 38 10219 10219

Non-interest income 5893 132 5761 5761

Non-interest expense _31 552

Income loss before income tax S2

Million Baht

The Bank

For the Three-Month Period Ended 31 March 2009

Domestic Foreign Eliminated

Business Business Total Transactions

Interest and dividend income 15541 87 15628 75 15553

Interest expense 465 126 A35 25 426

Net income expense from interest and dividend 10882 89 10793 10793

Non-interest income 5010 190 5200 5200

Non-interest expense 1Q54 1Q54

Income before income tax 65
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Million Baht

The Bank

For the Three-Month Period Ended 31 March 2008

Domestic Foreign Eliminated

Business Business Itai Transactions Total

Interest and dividend income 13709 292 14001 197 13804

Interest expense L7i 3M 127 L194

Net income expense from interest and dividend 10138 38 10100 10100

Non-interest income 5380 132 5248 5248

Non-interest expense 9j4 fl

Income loss before income tax
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18 RECLASSIFICATION OF ACCOUNTS

Certain accounts in the balance sheet as at 31 December 2008 have been reclassified to confonn with the

presentation in the balance sheet as at 31 March 2009

Significant reclassifications are as follows

Million Baht

31 December 2008

Consolidated The Bank

Before Reclassifications After Before Reclassifications After

reclassifications reclassifications reclassifications reclassications

Balance sheet

Assets

Interbank and money market items

Domestic items

Interest bearing 187805 1073 186732 188236 1073 187163

Foreign items

Interest bearing 6911 1361 5550 6911 1361 5550

Otherassets-net 8186 2434 10620 6385 2434 8819

Liabilities

Interbank and money market items

Foreign items

Interestbearing 3619 2611 1008 3619 2611 1008

Other liabilities 17366 19977 16536 2.611 19147

The reclassifications have been made because in the opinion of management the new classification is more

appropriate to the nature of business

19 APPROVAL OF TILE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Audit Committee on 14 May 2009
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Executive Summary

Management Discussion and
Analysis

For the Quarter Ending March 31 2009

In the first quarter
of 2009 KASIKORNBANKGROUP continued to move forward in meeting

the diverse needs of customers through
the offer of complete financial solutions under the goal of

becoming the best financial service provider and our affirmed stance of being perceived by

customers as their solution bank In our operating performance for the first quarter of 2009 the

Banls consolidated net income equaled Baht 3800 million increasing by
Baht 1010 million or 36.20

percent over the fourth
quarter

of 2008 This increase in the net income was mainly attributable to an

over-quarter
decrease in non-interest expense in

light
of dedines in promotional and public relations

expenddures
and in other expenses off setting lower non-interest as well as net interest and dividend

income

On our balance sheet the Banks consolidated assets totaled Baht 1217862 million down

by Baht 85692 million or 6.57 percent from the end of 2008 attributed mainly to decreases in

interbank and money market items as well as loans As of March 31 2009 the Banks consolidated

interbank and money market items totaled Baht 13318 million showing
decrease of Baht 122922

million or 62.62 percent
from the end of 2008 Meanwhile the Banks consolidated loans amounted

to Baht 817142 million down by
Baht 26866 million or 2.91 percent

from the end of 2008 Our net

NP ratio to total loans equaled 1.85 percent rising compared to 1.47 percent seen at the end of

2008 In the meantime the gross
NP ratio to total loans was 3.10 percent increasing compared to

3.09 percent reported at the end of 2008 The consolidated liabilities of the Bank as of March 31

2009 totaled Baht 1100241 million falling by
Baht 89645 million equivalent to 7.53-percent drop

over-quarter in light
of decreases in deposits and borrowing

Our deposits amounted to Baht 914106

million down by Baht 53844 million or 5.56
percent

from the end of 2008 Also short-term

borrowing totaled Baht 10346 million showing decrease of Baht 21290 million or 27.95 percent

from the end of 2008 Total consolidated shareholders equity was Baht 117615 million growing by

Baht 3953 million or 3.48
percent over the end of 2008 as result of our operating income in this

quarter Meanwhile the capital adequacy ratio of the Bank amounted to 15.63
percent

where our

Tier-i and lier-2 capital were 10.17
percent

and 5.46 percent respectively

The Banks core business operations
encountered many challenges due to an unfavorable

operating environment particulay more pronounced economic slowdown brought about by the

global economic crisis and domestic
political uncertainty

As result sluggish customer demand for

loans and risk management products
has led to drops in our corporate

and SME business loans as

well as lowered our fee-based income on risk management products However retail business loans



have continued to grow Additionally our treasury operations registered over-quarter growth in total

interest and dividend income despite continuously declining interest rates

To ensure effective response to increased economic Ask we continued to develop and

improve our risk management in different dimensions during the first quarter of 2009 particulady in

credit and liquidity Ask management in addition to ongoing development efforts in all support

functions mainly human resources and IT management In recognition of our efforts to develop

businesses in each and
every dimension KASIKORNBANKGROUP was widely honored with

prestigious awards and other marks of
recognition during the first quarter of 2009 They

included the

Best of the Best Awards 2008 by
Asia Asset Management journal awarded to KASIKORN ASSET

MANAGEMENT CO LTD KAsset the Securities Analyst
Award 2008

by
the Securities Analyst

Association in coordination with Money and Wealth journal awarded to KASIKORN SECURITIES

PCL KSecurines and the Best Car Leasing of the Year 2009 award presented to KASIKORN

LEASING CO LTD KLeasing by the Ministry of Industry as part
of the Car Bike of the Year 2009
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Overview

1.1 Overview of Economy Banking Industry and Regulatory Changes

Thailands Economy in the First Quarter of 2009

Thailands economy is expected to contract 6.5
percent year-on-year

in the first
quarter

of

2009 down from the 4.3-percent drop in the fourth quarter of 2008 This
sharper

contracon was

caused by drop in exports
and pvate sector spending despue the economic smulus efforts of the

government Meanwhile the Headline Consumer Price Index CPI fell 0.3 percent over-year versus

the 2.1-percent increase in the pervious quarter due to the sharp over-year drop in oil pAces While

exports plunged sharply over-year imports fell even more deeply resulting in huge trade surplus in

the hrst quarter of 2009 This trade surplus meanwhile provided key support to the Baht against

the U.S Dollar

Thailand Economic Growth Forecast

tinfts Year-on-year percentage change or as otheiwse idicated

_________________________ -i---- ____

Private Consumption Index -5.3 0.6

Private Investment Index -15.7 -3.6

Manufacturuig Producon Index -18.9 -8.0

Agncullure Production Index 6.3 4.0

Exports -19.9 -9.4

Imports
-38.3 5.3

Trade Balance USD milions 7800 -1365

Current Account USD milions 9112 -1912

Headline CPI Intladon -0.3 2.1

Source The Bank of Thailand KASIKORN RESEARCH CENTER CO UD

Due to the sharp
economic contraction and plunging CPI the Bank of Thailand Bol

trimmed their policy rate in total by 1.25 percent
from 2.15

percent at year-end
2008 to 1.50

percent

in the BoTs Monetary Policy Committee meeflng on February 25 2009 While commercial banks have

adopted more cauhous approach toward lending and risk management competition remains

intense as banks are keen to expand their customer bases especially in medium to higher income

segments which are considered to be less vulnerable to the economic downturn



Banking Industry and Competition

In the first
quarter

of 2009 ahhough the Thai commercial banking system
continued to show

ligher net profits over the final quarter
of 2008 these profits were mainly due to drop

in allowances

for doubtful accounts and losses on debt restructuring coupled
with seasonal decrease in non-

interest expenses However commercial banks core revenues particularly net interest and dividend

income dropped over-year
and over-quarter causing net profits to be lower than in the same period

of 2008 likewise net interest margins reported significant decrease from the first and fourth

quarter of 2008

This weaker banking profitability
mirrored adverse impacts from the slowing Thai economy

amid heightened political uncertainty and the global economic cæsis Given such unfavorable

operating environment net loans of the 14 Thai commercial banks contracted 2.36 percent from the

end of 2008 in contrast to deposits which continued to
grow

at 0.91-percent rate The ratio of net

non-performing
loans NPk to total loans as of the end of the first

quarter
of 2009 stood at 5.33

percent up compared to 4.88
percent at the end of 2008 This was in line with the increase in the

ratio of
gross

NPs to total loans at 5.91 percent æsing compared to 5.65 percent at the end of 2008

In the meantime fee income main
part

of non-interest income slowed in line with the downward

trend of loans and domestic financial transactions

Amid the challenges from economic uncertainties competition in some areas has become

less intense duæng the first
quarter

of 2009 especially in deposit products as commercial banks

liquid asset increased However loan competition remains strong particularly among some specific

groups of customers with high debt-servicing ability such as business customers with growth

potential or being less sensitive to the slowing economy and also retail customers with high income

or good repayment
records Due to the limited pool of these prospective customers intense

competition has resufted in
pæce wars wlich have been more evident in large corporate customers

with strong bargaining power To maintain profitability
commercial banks have also shifted their focus

to fee-based income leading to more intense competition in this area as well

In addition to the aforementioned adjustments in business targets
and competition strategy

commercial banks have also paid
due attention to improving risk and operating cost managemenL

The latter has been achieved to certain degrees by interest rate reductions in line with the

downward trend in the policy rate and cuts in operating expenses All of these efforts are to help

sustain commercial banks operating performance
and their financial stability while they await

potential economic recovery
in the future



Regulatory Changes

Major regulatory changes that have affected KASIKORNBANK KBank business

undertakings in the first quarter of 2009 are summarized in the following

Suretyship Contract at Financial Institutions

The Bank of Thailand BoT issued Notification No SorNorSor 1/2552 dated January 21

2009 governing Suretyship
Contract at Financial Institutions specifying some exceptions for the

cases where the parent company enters suretyship contract for loans extended to subsidiary

company by
financial instifution not to be governed by the Suretyship Contract Criteria under the

former BoT Notification wfth No SorNorSor 18/2551 dated August 2008 It specified
that the

loan principal be stated cleay in the contract or prohibited entry
into an unlimited suretyship

contract In any event of defauft in which the financial institution
agrees

to reschedule the loan but

both parties are unable to reach an agreement within six months from the detauft date the financial

institution shall notify
the

surety
about details ol the loans in writing This is due to the fact that the

parent company has control over its subsidiary so the limited suretyship shall be unnecessary

Moreover in any event of detauft the financial institution shall not have to notify the
surety by the

previously specified deadline

The BoT notification will help extend the borrowing limit of debtor company under

suretyship by the
parent company which in the meantime will enhance

flexibility
for credit extension

among financial institutions Despite the greater flexibility as stated KBank continues to adhere to the

credit underwriting process
under our stringent and prudent risk management policy and guidelines

Credit Extension Policy for Selected Businesses

The BoT issued Notification with No ForNorSor.21 Wor 481/2552 dated March 2009

governing
Credit Extension Policy for Selected Businesses The main points covered revision in the

criteria for housing loan extension with the total value of Baht 10 million and higher by adjusting the

Loan to Value LTV linit to not exceeding 80 percent of the sale price as actually agreed upon which

is
up

from the 10-percent level This is in line with the actual economic conditions and international

standards As for any
over-limit transaction the financial institution shall exercise extra caution and

reserve additional capital to cushion any possible
risk from such loan transactions

The Notification wil extend borrowing capacity among prospective homebuyers in the high

end segment which will benefit the property
market and stimulate the overall economy In the

meantime it will encourage
financial institutions to adopt more prudent

and stricter underwriting

process
for their housing loans amid the currently high

economic uncertainty As for KBank it is

believed that the B0T Notihcation as referred to above will
likely support housing

loans extended to

such potential customers with high income and low credit risk Credit underwræing for this customer



segment
will be based on this new crdena in addition to exisung ones that focus on collateral and

customers debt servicing ability

1.2 Direction of Business Operations

In the first
quarter

of 2009 KASIKORNBANKGROUP conffnued our best efforts to meet the

diverse needs of customers through the offer of complete financial soluhons under the goal of

becoming the best financial service provider We also aim to be soluhon bank fully equipped

with financial and business knowledge for customers of all segments It is believed that this integrated

knowledge coupled with our thorough understanding of the problems and needs of customers in

every segment would not only enhance the Banks capability in providing the best financial supports

for our customers but also enable us to lay down an efficient framework for our business analysis and

planning

In addition to the ongoing development
efforts of all support funchons mainly human

resources and IT management the Bank has placed considerable emphasis on preparahon
to cope

with rising economic nsks through prudent
risk management In fact proper preparahon had been

made for both the Bank and our customers since the latter half of 2008 For customers the Bank has

focused on providing appropriate
financial advice and business management knowledge in order to

ensure their efficient preparation for and handling of changing market condiflons In the meantime

the Bank has set
target

industries for lending and conducted close monitoring of customer credit

status to maintain an appropriate credit policy amid the current economic conditions The Bank has

also adopted more stringent credit underwriting criteria and established special team to monitor

customers with high liquidity risks while efficiency
in debt monitoring and

recovery
has also been

improved As for counterparty risks the Bank has conducted ralings of our foreign counterpartieS

and enforced proper transaction limits corresponding to those ratings

In the meanhme the Bank has given more priority to expanding our fee-based income Of

note was our decision to expand our investment in the life insurance business as it has been found to

be complementary to KBanks business directions and also providing
attractive returns while

bancassurance products
have recently become primary source of KBanks fee-based income It is

expected that our investment expansion in the Ie insurance business will be accomplished in the

second quarter of 2009

Major progress
in KASIKORNBANKGROUP KGroup performance

in the fist quarter of 2009

is summarized as below

KASIKORN FACTORING CO LTD KFactoring still enjoys good financial heahh and has been

able to maintain their leading edge in the factoring business The company continues to improve

factoring products and services which are part of the Banks K-Supply Chain Solutions to meet

the needs of
every

business customer segment



KASIKORN ASSET MANAGEMENT CO LTD KAsset remains leader in the asset

management business with continuing growth in Assets under Management AUM seen in the

first quarter of 2009 KAsset also won the Best of the Best Awards 2008 from Asia Asset

Management journal

KASIKORN RESEARCH CENTER CO LTD KResearch continues to offer their research

products and services with the aim of meeting the information needs of customers in all

segments At the same time KResearch continues to put emphasis on synergizing their research

with KGroup business units

KASIKORN SECURITIES PCL KSecurities has expanded their brokerage services for

derivative trading and recorded sustainable business growth In the first quarter of 2009 the

company won the Securities Analyst
Award 2008 from the Secuæties Analyst Association in

coordination with Money and Wealth journal In order to better serve their institutional investors

and enhance
synergy

with KGroup business units KSecuæties continues to strengthen their

research capability
All of these efforts have benefited their investment banking and securities

businesses

KASIKORN ftASING CO LTD KLeasing has shown outstanding performance and has been

widely recognized in the leasing and hire-purchase
business The company in the first quarter

of 2009 won the Best Car Leasing of the Year 2009 award granted by the Ministry of Industry

in the Car Bike of the Year 2009 Fair organized at the Bangkok International Trade and

Exhibition Centre BITEC late in March 2009

In addition to the aforementioned efforts the Bank in the first quarter of 2009 continued to

place emphasis on compliance with the Statement of Corporate Governance Pænciples as public

company limited and listed company on the Stock Exchange of Thailand SET The Bank

organized the 2009 Annual General Meeting AGM of Shareholders in accordance with the best

practices in recognizing the equal æghts
of all shareholders per

the Statement of Corporate

Governance Principles in continuation from the previous year These included permission
for

shareholders to submit issues for inclusion in the AGM agenda propose qualified candidate for

director election and submit their questions
for consideration before the AGM date



OeraDnq Performance and Financial Position Analysis

2.1 Operating Performance

Income tax expense

Operating proffi

Before bad debts and doubtful accounts

loss on debt restructunng and income tax

expense

The Banks consolidated net income for the first quarter of 2009 equaled Ball 3800 million

increasing by Baht 1010 million or 36.20 percent over Baht 2190 million for the fourth quarter of

2008 This was mainly attæbutable to an over-quarter
decrease in non-interest expense of Ball 2261

million or 20.82 percent due particularly to declines in promotional
and public relations

expenddures as well as decreases in other expenses Non-interest income amounted to Ball 5611

million faling by
Baht 803 million or 12.40 percent from the previous quarter

in tandem with Baht

548 million decrease in gains on investments equivalent to 15.80-percent drop as well as Baht

366 million decrease in fee and service income equivalent to 1.91-percent contraction This

resiited in lower ratio of non-interest income to total income of 34.52 percent in the first quarter
of

2009 from 31.42
percent

in the fourth quarter of 2008 In addition net interest and dividend income

fell
by

Baht 13 miHion or 0.61 percent from the
previous quarter as consequence of drop in

lending rates duæng the quarter as well as fall in loans In the same direction interest expense also

tell Meanwhile our consolidated net interest margins for the first quarter of 2009 equaled 3.61

percent
lower than the 3.19 percent for the fourth quarter of 2008

When compared to the same quarter of 2008 the Banks consolidated net income dropped

by
Ball 638 mhon or 14.38 percent in tandem wh an increase in non-interest expense

of Ball 923

Operating Performance for the First Quarter of 2009

Unts NWlion Baht

Income from interest and dividends

Interest expense

Net income from mterest and dividends

Bad debts and doubtful accounts reversab

Loss on debt restructunng

Non-interest income

Non-mterest expense

4155

10756

1376

984

5671

8600

1661

5314

10829

1505

579

6414

10861

1568

692

619

13

129

405

803

2261

99

4.26

11.52

0.67

8.51

69.95

12.40

20.82

6.31

13918

3698

10220

1425

451

5761

7611

1990

1593

1051

536

49

533

90

923

323

11.44

28.58

5.24

3.44

118.18

1.56

12.02

16.23



million or 12.02 percent Also non-interest income fell slightly by Baht 90 million or 1.56 percent

due to higher gains from sale of equity securities in the first quarter of 2008 Meanwhile net interest

and dividend income rose by Baht 536 million or 5.24
percent

in line with higher loan growth

The Banks consolidated income consists of two main components interest and dividend

income and non-interest income For the first quarter of 2009 shares of interest and dividend income

to total income and non-interest income to total income equaled 13.23 percent and 26.11 percent

respectively compared to 11.45
percent

and 28.55 percent for the final
quarter

of 2008 as well as

10.13
percent

and 29.21 percent for the hrst quarter of 2008 as foHows

1.1 Loans

1.2 Overdrafts

1.3Bls

Interbank and money market ems

2.1 Deposits

2.2 Loans

2.3 Securities purchased under resale

agreements

Hire purchase and financial leases

Investments

Total lnteresl and Dividend Income

Non-Interest Income

Fee and service income

1.1 Acceptances avals and guarantees

1.2 Others

Gains on exchange

Other income

Total Non-Interest Income

Income Structure

Interest and _..idend Income

Loans

Uns Mhon Baht

13142

1129

2803

2610

613

668

62.04

36.49

13.23

12.32

3.18

0.03

3.15

13931

8006

3041

2890

696

40

656

61.46

35.30

13.41

12.15

3.01

0.18

2.89

11981

6654

2121

2606

556

163

381

60.88

33.81

13.83

13.24

2.83

0.83

1.94

12 0.06

609 2.88 539 2.31 406 2.06

1081 5.13 1031 4.55 915 4.95

15511 13.23 16203 11.45 13918 10.13

318 1.50 299 1.32 301 1.53

3910 18.46 4296 18.95 3589 18.24

1129 5.33 958 4.22 881 4.48

314 1.48 921 4.06 990 5.03

5611 26.11 6414 28.55 5161 29.21



Net Income from Interest and Dividends

The Banks consolidated net interest and dividend income for the first quarter of 2009 totaled

Baht 10156 million faling by
Baht 13 milon or 0.61 percent from the fourth quarter of 2008 but

increasing by Baht 536 miHion or 5.24 percent over the same peæod of 2008

Net Income from Interest and Dividends

Unfis Million Baht

Income from interest and diAdends 15511 16203 692 13918 1593

Loans 13142 13938 796 11981 1161

Interbank and money
market ftems 613 695 22 556 117

Hire purchase and financial leases 609 539 10 406 203

Investments 1087 1031 56 975 112

Interest expense 4155 5314 619 3698 1057

Net interest margin NIM 3.67 3.79 4.18

The Banks consolidated interest and dividend income for the first quarter
of 2009 amounted

to Baht 15511 million dropping by
Baht 692 million or 4.21

percent
from the fourth quarter

of 2008

This was due mainly to Baht 196 millon decrease in interest income from loans equivalent to 5.11

percent drop following downward adjustment
in

lending
rates during the quarter as well as lower

loan extension In the same direction interest
expense

fell by Baht 619 milIon or 11.52 percent
in

the wake of Baht 599 million decline in interest expense
from deposs equivalent to

14.54-percent drop along with decrease in deposit rates during the quarter as well as decreases

in deposft outstanding
In the meantime expense

from long-term borrowing increased by
Baht 281

million foHowing the Banks subordinated debt issuances in December 2008 Regarding net interest

margins they fell to 3.61 percent for the first quarter of 2009 compared to 3.19
percent

for the

previous quarter

When compared to the same quarter of 2008 our consolidated interest and dividend income

rose by Baht 1593 million or 11.44
percent owing mainly to an increase in interest income from

loans of Baht 1161 milIon Meanwhile interest
expense

increased by Baht 1057 million as result

of higher deposit costs and se in borrowing However our net interest margins dropped by 0.51

percent
from 4.18 percent

in the first
quarter

of 2008

Non-interest Income

The Banks consolidated non-interest income for the first quarter of 2009 equaled Baht 5671

million down by Baht 803 million or 12.40
percent

from the previous quarter
This was mainly



attributable to an over-quarter decrease in gains on investments totaling Baht 548 million or 75.80

percent in
light

of high base of compaæson after the Banks profit-taking on bonds amid the

favorable market in the final quarter of 2008 Moreover fee and service income fell by Baht 366

million or 7.97 percent following drop in fee income from loans along with the sluggish economic

situalion

When compared to the same quarter
of 2008 our consolidated non-interest income fell

slighfly by Baht 90 million or 1.56
percent

due particulady to Baht 603 milion decrease in
gains on

investments equivalent to 71.50-percent
contraclion in tandem with higher gains

from sale of

equity
secuæties in the first quarter of 2008 However fee and service income as well as gains on

exchange rose by
Baht 338 milion and Ball 248 million respectively

Non-interest Expense

The Banks consolidated non-interest expense
for the first

quarter
of 2009 totaled Baht 8600

million down by
Baht 2261 million or 20.82

percent
from the previous quarter This was mainly

attæbutable to higher promolional and public relaflons expenditures along with business transaclions

recorded in the fourth quarter of 2008 wherein such expenditures and other expenses fell in the first

quarter of 2009

When compared to the same quarter of 2008 our consolidated non-interest expense

increased by Ball 923 million or 12.02 percent following
Baht 441 million rise in personnel

expense in accordance with the growing number of staff together
with Baht 251 million increase in

premises and equipment expenses

Provisions for Doubtful Accounts and Losses on Debt Restructuring

For the first
quarter

of 2009 the Bank and subsidiaries set aside allowances for doubtful

accounts and incurred losses on debt restructuring totaling Baht 2360 million increasing by
Baht

216 million
over-quarter

and by Ball 484 miHion
over-year

These increases were mainly
in

response

to the changing economic environment



2.2 Financial Position Analysis

Assets

As of March 31 2009 the Banks consolidated assets totaled Baht 1217862 million

decreasing by Ball 85692 million or 6.57 percent from the Baht 1303554 milhon at the end of

2008 The decline in our consobdated assets was attributed mainly to Baht 122922 million drop in

interbank and money market items equivalent to 62.62-percent contradbon and fall in loans As

of March 31 2009 the Banks consolidated loans amounted to Baht 877142 mOon down by Baht

26866 million or 2.97
percent

from the Ball 904008 miNion reported at the end of 2008 The

decrease was seen particutady in trade finance promisswy notes and overdraft loans following the

economic slowdown In addiflon the drop
in our consolidated assets was caused by decrease in

cash after in the fourth quarter of 2008 the Bank had prepared extra cash to be ready for

wflhdrawals during the New Year holiday and received
qude large sum of deposfls late in 2008

Our net non-performing
loans Net NPI.s ratio to total loans at the end of March 2009

equaled 1.85
percent up compared to 1.41 percent at the end of 2008 Similady the

gross
NPI raflo

to total loans was at 3.70
percent

at the end of March 2009 rising compared to 3.09 percent at the

end of 2008 The increases were caused by drop
in total loans

Financial Ratios

flints Percent

Net NPLs to Total Loans 1.85 1.47

Gross NPLs to Total Loans 3.70 3.09

Units Million Baht

1400000

1200000 2%

5% 1% _______
15% 2% 6%

_______
1000000 ____ 12% 2%

8% 16% 10%

800000

600000

81% 12% 83%

400000

200000

Dec 31 2000 Mar 31 2009

LI Loans and accrued mteresl recnivahles LI Deponits

LI Investments LI Bmrowargs

LI Intethank and moneymitetiteins asse LI Interbank and morrey market rbms abthIy

LI Cash LI Other abiitjes

LI Other assets
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Other assets reporting signicant change from the previous quarter included net

investments At the end of March 2009 net investments totaled Baht 188826 million æsing by Baht

85881 million or 83.42 percent over the end of 2008 due mainly to our liquidity management

through asset allocahons into government bonds carrying high yields

UritsoBaIi

200000

150000

100000

50000

Dec.312008 Mar.312009

Gosiwnel and State Erleqiise Secwlles Pne Erdpise Dell Instninanls

Fangi Dell Instrunierls Epity
Seaicities

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

The consolidated liabilities of the Bank at the end of March 2009 equaled Baht 1100241

million faling by Ball 89645 million or 1.53
percent

from the Baht 1189892 million at the end of

2008 Consolidated liabilities that had changed signihcantly from the previous quarter were

Deposits as of March 31 2009 totaled Baht 914106 million down
by

Baht 53844

miHion or 5.56
percent

from the end of 2008 This was mainly attæbutable to fixed-term

deposs that came due

Borrowing at the end of March 2009 was Baht 113157 million dropping by Baht

25002 million or 18.10 percent from the end of 2008 This was due mainly to short-term

borrowing
that came due

As of March 31 2009 total consolidated shareholders equfty amounted to Baht 111615

million growing by Baht 3953 million or 3.48
percent over the Baht 113662 milion at the end of

2008 This increase was the result of the Baht 3800 million operating income for the hrst quarter of

2009 together with the Baht 150 mæon increase in revaluation surplus on investments

Investments

11



Relationship
Between Sources and Uses of Funds

At the end of March 2009 the funding structure as shown in the Consolidated Financial

Statement compAsed Baht 1100241 milMon in liabihhes and Baht 111615 million in shareholders

equity resulting in debt-to-equity ratio of 9.35 The major source of funds on the liabilities side was

deposits which equaled Baht 914106 million or 75.06 percent of the total Other sources of funds

included interbank and money market items plus borrowing
wlich accounted for 1.03 percent and

9.29 percent of the total respectively

The Bank and subsidiaAes major use of funds was loans At the end of March 2009 loans

totaled Baht 811142 milon resulting
in loan-to-deposit ratio of 95.96 percent

As for the remairing

liquidity the Bank invested in various selections of liquid assets such as interbank and money

market items as well as investments in securities

2.3 Capital Requirements and Credd Ratings

Capal Funds

As of March 31 2009 the Bank had capital funds of Baht 143134 million comprising Tier-i

capital equaling Baht 93564 million and Tier-2 capital equaling Ball 50111 million The
capital

adequacy ratio of the Bank amounted to 15.63 percent signihcandy above the Bols minimum

requirement of 8.50 percent
Details of the capital adequacy ratio of the Bank are shown in the

following
table

Capital Adequacy Ratio

lJnns Percent

10.35

3.12

Note These ratios do not inckide the net profits
of each accounting pedod According to BoT

regulations
the net

profit
of the

frst haU of the
year

shall be inckided in the instflutions
capital

after approval by the Banks Board of Directors The net

profit for the second haU of the
year

shal be inchided in that capital after approval by General Meeting of

Shareholders Hover there net loss the loss niist be deducted from
capital immediately

Based on the rk assets of the Bank From December 2008 onwards the Bank has begun to nwintain
regulatory

capal by adopting the Standardization Approach SA in accordance with the BoTs Basel II

principle
As for the

capflal
funds before that time the calculation was based on the risk assets of the Bank and our AMC

Tier-i
Capital

10.33

Tier-2 Capital
5.46 5.21 3.68 4.01
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Capital Adequacy Raho

Including the net profit
of each accounting peæod

Units Percent

iii

3.12

Credft Ratings

At the end of March 2009 the Banks credit rahng given by Moodys Investors Service

Standard Poos and Fftch Rangs remained unchanged from the end of 2008 Detais are shown in

the following table

KASIKORNBANKs Credæ Raungs

Moodys Investors Service

Foreign Currency

Outlook

Long-term Debt

Deposit

Short-term Debt/Deposit

Subordinated Debt

Bank Financial Strength Rating BFSR

Outlook for BFSR

Domestic Currency

Outlook

Long-term Deposit

Short-term Debt/Deposit

Standard Poors

Outlook

Long-term DebtlCertlicate of Deposit

Shorterm Debt/Certificate of Deposit

Subordinated Debt Foreign Currency

Bank Fundamental Strength Rating BFSR Local Currency

Fitch Ratings

Negative

Baal

P-2

Baal

Stable

Stable

A3

P-i

Stable

BBB

A-2

BBB

Tier-i Capital

Tier-2
Capital

5.45 5.21 3.68 4.01

international Credit Ratings Foreign Currency

Outlook Negative

Long-term Issuer Defau Rating
BBB

Short-term Issuer Defau Rating
F2

Subordinated Debt BBB
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__
Individual

Support

National C1edft Ratings

StableOutlook

AAthaLong-term

Fl i-tha

AA-tha

Short-term

Subordinated Debt

Note Moodys Investors Service does not assign ratings to the Banks
long-term

debt

The base levels for investment grade on long-term
credi

ratings
for Moodys Investors Service Standard

Poors and Ftch Ratings are Baa3 BBB- and BBB- respectively For short-term credi
ratings

the base levels

br investment grade as vied by these three agencies are P-3 A-3 and F3 respectively
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Operations of Core Businesses

3.1 Business Overview

In the first
quarter

of 2009 the Banks core business encountered many challenges due to

an unfavorable business environment particularly more pronounced economic slowdown brought

about by
the world economic crisis and domestic

polftical uncertainty These negative factors not

only
hurt business confidence but also adversely

affected business operations of our corporate

customers and income
stability

of retail customers despite the government
economic stimulus efforts

As resuft our banking businesses were impacted
in many dimensions including the sluggish

customer demand for loans and their lowered needs for risk management products that were

dampened by reduced transactions in the countrys international trades and investment Meanwhile

competition among commercial banks remained intense because most commercial banks have

shifted their
targets

to the affluent group of customers such as corporate
customers with growth

potential and retail customers in high-income segment

Realizing
the challenges caused by the weakened economy the Bank has placed emphasis

on the developments of products services and sales promotional activihes that help
maintain our

competitiveness while support
the customers business undertakings based on the needs of each

customer segment Of notes were our risk management services for international trade-related

transactions and cash management services with an aim to maximize returns on customers Iquidity

as well as activities and events organized
to equip our customers with knowledge for effechve

adjustments of their businesses in times of economic difficulty In addition the Bank has revised and

updated our competition and marketing strategies with the aim to maintain our business leadership

while we have continually paid due attenflon to credit quality
maintenance The operations of the

Bank relating to customers products as well as sales and service channels in the first
quarter

of

2009 are summanzed below

3.2 Customer Segments

MuI-Corporate Business

In order to help enhance customers business liquidity the Bank has continued to

provide them financial support including adjustments in the features of products
and services

as well as their terms and conditions At the same time we have placed greater emphasis on æsk

management but have still managed to strengthen our close relationships
with customers by

arranging activities to foster knowledge for some specific groups
of customers such as those in

the energy business Recreational activities including golf tournament were also organized to

enhance and maintain the good relationslip between the Banks executives and our valued

customers

15



arge Corporate Business

Amid economic and commodity price uncertainfles the Bank has focused on providing

services beyond the conventional banking sphere to include for example advisory
services

These services are based on extensive studies and efforts to build thorough understanding of

customers industries and businesses In order to strengthen customer competitiveness
amid

unfavorable economic conditions the Bank organized seminars on value-based management for

high-ranking execuDves of the customers organizations highhghhng effeclive management

procedures and integration of relevant business informallon to create value-added for their

businesses In addihon we have adopted strategies to foster cordial relahonship
with the

customers by arranging golf tournaments and knowledge-based activities emphasizing the

management of famly-owned
businesses and development of human resources So doing is

believed to help improve comparative advantages
of our business customers in the currently

intense competition leading to their sustainable business operahon
in the long term

Medium Business

The Bank in the first
quarter

of 2009 organized various promohonal
achvihes for our

products
and services Of notes were nine seminars aimed at providing knowledge and offering

sudable products for our business customers nahonwide as well as helping
them to handle

todays economic slowdown more effectively
These seminars were also extended to cover our

international business clients including Japanese Chinese and Korean entrepreneurs

Small and Micro Business

In the first quarter of 2009 the Bank developed new loan products and launched sales

promohonal campaigns
for the Small and Micro Business segment such as loans for the rental

home and apartment business which targeted at small business operators This product
is

muhipurpose loan wfth repayment period of up to seven years
The maximum loan limit is as

high as eighty percent
of an entire projects value In addiflon to loan products the Bank

launched new sales promotional campaign offering special privileges and incenbves for

customers applying
for loans and life insurance products as well as for customers setting UI

limits

For other activities to promote
the Banks products and services six seminars were

arranged in Bangkok Samut Sakhon Chon Buri oei and Phrae Aside from the Banks product

and service information presented during
the seminars knowledge and techniques to identify

business opportunities amid the current economic crisis were also provided to our customers

Meanwhile the Bank
organized Money Expo for Micro Business customers in Phitsanulok with

more than 2000 visitors participating
in the Expo Moreover fifteen and hfty-eight marketing

activities were introduced for the Small and Micro Business customers respectively
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Signature Segment

With strong determinaflon to be one of the leading service providers in the high-end

consumer market the Bank in the first quarter of 2009 launched special campaigns to otter

products and services of the KASIKORNBANKGROUP along wfth special puvileges tailored for

potential customers who were not our customers at that hme These products and services have

been presented by our well-trained relationship managers In addiflon the Bank has coordinated

wdh the SME business division to jointly design marketing plans
We also participated in SME

Care events in order to create brand awareness among SME business customers and help

upgrade potential
middle-income customers to the signature segment To achieve this objective

vaous marketing campaigns have been launched particulay with the aim of increasing their

investments in our deposit products mutual funds bill of exchange BIE as well as debentures

Middle Income Segment

The Bank continues to give pnordy to improving
customers satisfaction via our products

and services especially among middle-income customers Our objective is to help increase the

number of customers wh the potential to move to higher segment
in the future and to

promote

sales of banking products to this group
of customers as well as size of their assets under our

management In order to achieve this goal we have organized marketing activities to introduce

products
that best serve the needs of these customers particularly mutual fund and credit card

products In addition introduction to various KGroup products has been made to encourage

more frequent usage among these customers while other interesting services have been

recommended to new customers through various activities For example we participated in

Money Expo held at Pattaya
in order to present and reaffirm the KGroups role as financial

instdution with end-to-end service solutions Our new products
included K-Salary Benefits

sales promotion consisting of special deposit products housing loan and personal loans

which has been introduced to customers opening payroll accounts with Bank

Mass Segment

The Bank has adhered to our goal
of becoming the main bank for customers in the Mass

segment
but having potential to be in the Middle Income segment in the future Many marketing

activihes have been launched to introduce our electronic channels and mobile banking
services

to customers especially twenty-four-hour e-banking services In addition the Bank has

organized vaæous activities to strengthen good relationships and bolster the corporate image of

KGroup Of note were events held to provide advices for new graduates in choosing their

careers and making their financial plans Also products that best suit to different groups of target

customers have been introduced while the Bank continues to effectively manage our operating

costs for the Mass segment
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3.3 Product Groups and Sales and Service Channels

3.3.1 Product Groups

In the first quarter of 2009 the Bank continued to offer new products and services as well as

launch major sales promotional programs
and public relahons achvities as follows

Domeshc Credit PoducL LJPJOpfl1efl1 anc Seivice El nhancemems

Product and
Centralized UI and Centralized P/N prqect has been implemented which

ranges
from

Indemnity-

issuance and renewal of letter of indemnity UO and promissory notes P/N payment

Borrowing
of P/N UI confirmahon and claims under UI The

project not only helps create credit

underwæhng standards and controls for the Bank as well as enhance our efficiency in

UI and PIN operanonal procedures ensuæng faster and complete customer service

delivery but also improves our staff skills in providing professional and complete sales

and services

Trade Finance J1 1ro1 nid macu

New æsk hedging services for import and export customers were provided in the first

quarter of 2009 to help them withstand international trade
volatility

amid the
global

economic and financial cæsis These services include Export UC Discount without

Recourse which provides protechon in the case of payment defau from overseas

trading partners
To reduce our risks from

engaging
in such transactions we will sell our

export
UC to our correspondent banks

Cash Management New Puueb afl1

K-Corporate Payment Card which was
officially

launched on February 2009

features smart cards
enabling

B2B
payments

in place of cheque or cash payments

for KBank corporate customers plus
SMS alert services Customers can therefore be

assured of faster more convenient and secure transactions KBank is the first bank in

Thailand to provide this innovative payment solution for corporate clients business

networks So far three companies have signed up
for the service while the Bank plans

to expand the service to larger group
of customers to ensure thorough service

delivery

K-Corporate B/E Flexible was introduced by the Bank to help corporate customers

achieve highest efficiency in their cash management with low risk plus high return on

their investment meeting their needs for liquidity management This
K-Corporate

B/E

Flexible guarantees
interest

payment upon
the three-month maturity of the B/E In

case of an early redemption customers are sf11 entitled to interest payment in
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accordance with the deposit period starting
from seven-day tenor For conventional

BIE customers who redeem their BIE early shall not receive any interest or shall be

subject to
payment

at savings deposit rate only Apparenily K-Corporate BIE Flexible

is the first of its kind in Thailand that ensures greater flexibility
of BIE products

effectively meeting the needs of customers

Jrarns ibh

SMEs Buffet
program

was re-launched in the first
quarter

of 2009 after the successful

launch of such project last
year

For greater flexibility
in

meeting
the diverse needs of

customers the programs terms and conditions have been adjusted through an offering

of three different price packages on monthly fee payments

Payroll Salary Benehts
program was launched to oiler beneffis to companies as well as

their employees using
KBank payroll services This is the first service of its kind that

provides benefits to employees of participating companies which helps bolster the

Banks competitiveness

Securities Services dtu .ueni dn

Expansion of the customer base of our custodial services We have extended the

customer base of our custodial services to indude new customers from life and non-life

insurance as well as educational institution businesses resulting in an increase of more

than Baht 100 billion in assets under management for our custodial services

Improvements of our custodial services for
private

funds The Bank has improved our

custodial services for private funds to better accommodate the needs of investors who

have shown more interests in investing in foreign securities especially on those linked

with gold and oil in addition to serving foreign institutional investors investing
in Thai

securities

Bancassurance Corpe.tidon and a1iuy Adjustments

Selection of core products for market expansion In
light

of the current economic

downturn that has led us to adopt more cautious stance in credit extension the Bank

has given higher priority to expanding fee-based income In achieving this objective we

continued to offer PERFECT Business Smart as our core product for both new and

existing customers We also offer PERFECT Business Plus featuring life insurance with

short-term savings plan and PERFECT Business Secure featuring life-time life

insurance all of which have
grown

in importance to our market expansion
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Product Devdopment and Service Enhancements

Personnel development We have placed emphasis on personnel development through

training program for our marketing teams with the use of curriculum jointly developed by

the Bank and our Preferred partners to enhance our service efficiency

Revision of the criteria for collateral acceptance The Bank has revised the criteria for

accepting collateral to ensure greater convenience for our customers in addithn to

higher efficiency in our bancassurance service expansion

Corporate Finance Product Devekprnent and Service Enhancements

Funding arrangement services We have provided funding arrangement
services for

customers via debentures syndicated loans and short-term B/E in addition to financial

advisory
services for customers fund mobilization and financial structure

Debenture trading in the secondary market We continue to place focus on debenture

trading
in the

secondary market providing liquidity for both issuers and investors in the

bond market as well as enhancing investment options for investors who seek higher

return at minimal Ask

Sales of new products The Bank is selling new switchable B/Es product with an option

for both investors and issuers in switching between fixed and floating rates The product

has received overwhelming response from investors

Risk Management New Products and Services

Products new Option product was introduced as an alternative Ask management tool for

customers facing foreign exchange Asks which has also helped increase fee-based

income for the Bank

Product Development and Service Enhancements

Risk management products
for foreign exchange interest rate and commodity price

Asks For foreign exchange Ask management products the Bank continues to offer

suitable products meeting
the needs of customers Products of note include forward

contracts provided to importers that have encountered highly volatile foreign exchange

rates plagued by the ongoing global
economic and financial crisis We also oiler interest

rate swap products for some long-term project finance customers who expect that the

interest rates might bottom out soon Because of this expectation these customers opted

to fix interest rates below the current market rates waiting for the Bank to execute the

transaction when the interest rates reach satisfactory levels In
light

of an uptrend in

commodity prices commodity consumers have shown significandy higher demand for

our risk management products to hedge against volatility
in

commodity prices especially
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energy
base metals and precious metals allowing them to control their costs more

efficiently
At the same time long-term sub-contractors have also locked in raw matenal

prices through the purchase of the Banks commodity pæce æsk management products

with an aim of
minimizing possible volatility

of their income

However the Bank recorded lower fee-based income from our risk management

products in the first quarter of 2009 especially foreign exchange æsk products in line with

lower transaction volume This was consistent with the decline in the countrys international

trade and investment transactions amid the global cæsis

SME Care tf i.d vk

Business operations under the SME Care program in the first quarter of 2009

focused mainly on the area of education In summary

Preparation for new training courses The Bank has prepared to organize another three

training courses under the Sustainable Management Enhancement Program
for SME

Entrepreneurs with total of more than 2400 participants across the country in 2009

The courses will be offered in cooperation with 12 universities nationwide including five

new leading universities i.e Walailak University Udon Thani Rajabhat University

Nakhon Sawan
Rajabhat University Pnnce of Songkla University Phuket and Surat Thani

campuses and Burapha University Bang Saen and Chanthaburi campuses The Bank

has also prepared to develop new curnculum focusing on fostering creative thinking

and innovations to ensure efficient adjustments of participating entrepreneurs
amid the

economic slowdown

SME Care Knowledge Center the first of its kind in Thailand has been established at

Chamchuæ Square Tower This center aims to serve as one-stop knowledge
center to

promote learning among SME
entrepreneurs

and to provide advisory services for their

business operation
Customers can acquire knowledge via main venues including

Business Intelligence which provides comprehensive business information database for

entrepreneurs
Business Training focusing on enhancing SME business potential

through seminars training and other beneficial activities and Business Network

where various activities are held among SME entrepreneurs to strengthen their business

networks Of notes include our business matching forum enabling
SME proprietors to

seek new business partners
in addition to online business matching at the Banks

website www.ksmecare.com to build their business networks
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Consumer oans ucP nd

K-Home roan Orthne was launched on February 18 2009 as an added service channel

for K-Home roan especially among new KGroup customers Preliminary approval
results

for mortgage loan applicalions can be checked instanily via websftes of KBank and

leading property developers
which are our business allies Customers will also be enhfled

to our home loan advisory services together wflh onsite documentahon under our

K-Home Loan Delivery product

11 tr

Marketing strategy adjustments
In the midst of the economic slowdown and downward

trend of interest rates pricing compehhon has become prevalent to win larger market

share To cope with the sduahon the Bank has adjusted our competition strategies by

actively organizing markeling achvflies since the first quarter of 2009 to promote our

home loans such as exhibition booths at special events and fairs both in Bangkok and

other major provinces in addion to promoDon achvilles and benefits under cooperahon

with our business allies Regarding our unsecured personal loans the Bank has

introduced this product to company employees using our payroll services through

exhibition booths by offering superior loan conditions as well as product bundling with

our K-Home Loans and K-Credfl Cards

Credit Cards

Marketing strategy adjustments
To increase applications for credo cards especially the

co-branded Carrefour-KBank Credit Card which was launched in the final
quarter

of

2008 and to encourage
credit card spending among KBank platinum cardholders who

have higher purchasing power and less sensihve to the economic downtrend we have

launched various sales promononal programs Programs of note induded mileage

redemphon and extra point accumulahon from spending in department stores As

result the Bank has achieved higher growth in credit card spending than the industrys

average
For the second quarter

of 2009 we plan to launch adddional sales promohonal

activies to spur
credft card spending especially on traveling during

tourism festivals

Credit quality control Amid the currenfly high economic uncertainty we have put greater

efforts toward prevenhng loan delinquency
which have been rising over the fourth quarter

of 2008 These efforts included the close monitoring of customers
payment records as

well as debt repayment alert prior to the due date
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Product Development and Service Enhancements

Expansion of card-accepting merchant services To increase the number of participating

merchants the Bank in cooperation with the Suvarnabhumi Taxi Cooperative has

launched service for taxi fare
payment acceptance

via credit cards Wireless EDC

mathines have been installed in taxis We have also approached prospective merchants

for JCB card acceptance in order to broaden our JCB card service network The
system

test is now being undertaken wNch is expected to be
officially implemented in the

second quarter
of 2009

Deposits and Fee- Competition and Operational Strategy Adjustments

based Income
Operational strategy adjustments to cope

with
heightened

economic Asks In doing so

the Bank has shortened the time span of our marketing promotional programs or special

interest rates offered to customers by taking into account possible changes in interest

rate directions as well as our deposit costs

Product Development and Service Enhancements

Expansion of e-banking service channels As pan of our efforts to expand the e-banking

service channel the Bank has increased the number of tutoring centers participating in

real-time e-payment for educational expenses as well as payment
channels at K-Cyber

Banking and K-MOBILE BANKING ATM SIM in addition to KBank teller counters

Major Sales Promotional Programs and Public Relations Activities

Sales promotional activities for Taweesup Special Fixed Deposit and Ready-to-use

lime Deposit were organized at KBank branches nationwide from January 23 to March

15 2009 These products offer some added benefits on top of attractive interest rates

Mutual Fund New Products and Services

Business New mutual fund issuances In the first
quarter

of 2009 the Bank in cooperation with

KAsset issued number of new mutual funds including six fixed-income funds which

invest in South Korean government
bonds to minimize Ask related to credit ratings amid

the
currently high

economic uncertainty

Major Sales Promotional Programs and Public Relations Activities

Sales promotional programs The Bank has organized many sales promotional programs

including
free fuel coupons for purchases of K-Treasury and K-Money funds and setting

precise period for purchase of LTFs and RMFs with K-Credit Card to stimulate sales

volume

Bancassurance New Products and Services

Pro Saving 410 which offers ten-year coverage
with insurance premium payments for

only four
years plus annual cash benefas
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Pro Life 90/5 featunng whole life insurance product with life protection coverage at 100

percent
of the sum insured until the insureds age reaches ninety Premium payment

period is five
years

while annual cash benehts are offered at one percent
of the sum

insured

Pr.Fi.t.1 Deekmen1I 31 15

Documentation
process improvements

We have streamlined the documentation process

especially
for insurance applications and related documents to enhance

flexibility
and

convenience of document delivery
between KBank staff

ufl

Adjustments in product offering strategy corresponding to changes in the economic

sduaUon and consumer behaviors Amid the economic downtrend and financial

institutions stricter mortgage lending practices our Mortgage Reducing Term Assurance

MRTA has been affected somewhat as some customers opted
for reducing the

protection coverage period to save on their premiums In order to meet the
changing

needs of customers we have chosen to oiler our Pitaksin-Care life insurance products

featuring
wide

range
of protection coverage periods

shorter than their loan terms

which help prevent
customers from having to withdraw cash prior to the policys maturity

date

3.3.2 Sales and Service Channels

In the first
quarter

of 2009 we have continued to expand and improve our sales and service

channels as follows

Branch Network

In the first quarter
of 2009 the Bank opened twenty-six new branches evenly distributed in

the metropoldan and upcountry areas to ensure thorough services to customers bringing the total to

688 branches nationwide Our branches have been designed to match different target customers

and their needs at each location

Foreign Exchange Booths

The Bank in the first quarter of 2009 set up
nine new foreign exchange booths mainly

located at major tourist attractions in the upcountry area bringing
the total to eighty-five booths

Meanwhile eight
mobile booths were put

into service for use at trade fairs and other events further

enhancing customers convenience
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Internahonal Trade Service Offices

At the end of the first
quarter

of 2009 our InternaDonal Trade Service Offices totaled
fifty-five

offices

Cheque Direct Service Offices

At the end of the first quarter of 2009 our Cheque Direct Service Offices totaled twenty

offices

Corporate
Business Centers

At the end of the first quarter of 2009 our Corporate Business Centers totaled twelve centers

SME Business Centers

In the first quarter of 2009 the Bank opened seven new SM Business Centers targehng
the

Medium Business segment At the same ilme eleven and five new SME Business Centers for Small

and Micro Business
segments

were also opened respecuvely bnnging the total to 170 centers

nationwide

K-Contact Center

In order to accommodate business expansion within KGroup and with our Preferred
partners

the Bank has introduced new services and enhanced the service potenhal
of our K-Contact Center

All of our efforts are down with the aim of providing customers with greater convenience ftifilling
their

financial needs more responsively

Service Development The Bank has organized nine markeling promohonal programs for

our target customers involving product recommendahon and advisory services as well

as relahonship-based telesales such as recommending vaæety of credit cards to our

payroll or target customers and offering tax-saving products The programs have

received overwhelming response
from customers as evidenced from more than

fifty

percent
of approathed customers having signed up

for our services Along with this we

have conhnued with our Customer On-Boarding program aimed at providing advice on

our products and encouraging
customer spending in addihon to accepting suggeshons

from deposit and credit card customers Appareny ninety-seven percent
of

target

customers were interested in our offer and more than seventeen percent applied for

addihonal services

Savice Quality and Efficiency Development To enhance our e-mail service potential we

have revised our service level agreement where our staff are required to respond via

mail to customers requests
within one hour instead of four hours as required previously

The new operational hours for the e-mail service channel have been widened to 8.00-

21.30 hrs from 8.00-18.00 hrs previously Emphasis has also been placed on the

accuracy
and speed of our staff in response to the needs of customers more effectively
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In the first quarter of 2009 the volume of customer service utilizaflon via all service channels

of K-Contact Center increased over the same period of 2008 StaH person-to-person service and

other channels exduding telephones rose fourteen and sixty-five percent respectively An after-

service survey or Voice of the Customer program showed that the customer satisfacon rate was

ninety-six percent above the target of eighty-eight percent

Electronic Banking
Services

Our electronic banking
services are provided through four main channels including

K-ATM K-CDM and K-PUM

1.1 K-AIMs

As of the end of the first quarter of 2009 the number of the Banks ATMs came to 5591

units up
from 5102 units as of the end of 2008

1.2 K-CDMs

The Banks Cash Deposit Machines as of the fust
quarter

of 2009 totaled 169 unds up

from 701 units at the end of 2008

1.3 K-PUMs

The Banks Passbook Update Machines as of the first quarter of 2009 totaled 106 units

up
from 699 units at the end of 2008

2.ternotBankin

2.1 K-Cyber Banking

At the end of the first quarter
of 2009 the number of individual customers using the

Banks K-Cyber Banking
service increased twelve percent over the end of 2008 Meanwhile the

Bank has continually developed K-Cyber Banking through various dimensions including upgrades of

the data
storage system

for financial transachons conducted via our sales and service channels This

upgraded system enables customers to check their transachon status of accounts linked to our

K-Cyber Banking service on the same-day basis while the period for scheduling advanced alerts is

now extended to up to twelve months We have also developed the system
to accommodate

reservahons and payment for educahonal expenses
with tutoring centers via K-Cyber Banking

K-MOBIII BANKING ATM SIM as well as KBank teller counters

2.2 K-BizNet

The number of customers using our K-BizNet service for small businesses as of the end

of the first
quarter

of 2009 rose seven percent over the 2008 year-end
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K-MOBILE_BANKING

In the first
quarter

of 2009 the Bank set up booths to promote
K-MOBILE BANKING

service among KGroup staff at our three main branch offices and to introduce our new K-MOBILE

BANKING PLUS which is expected to be
officially

launched in the second quarter of 2009 We have

at the same time organized markeung adllvihes to offer and accept applications for the K-MOBILE

BANKING service at trade fairs and other events

3.1 K-MOBILE BANKING SMS previously K-mBanking

To provide greater conveiience and user friendliness for mobile top-up the Bank has

added fundbon for airtime
refilling across networks by typing new keywords that are easier to

remember

3.2 K-MOBILE BANKING ATM SIM previously ATM SIM

We have developed the
system

to accommodate reservations and educaonal expense

payments with tutoring centers via K-MOBILE BANKING ATM SIM and K-Cyber Banking
in addiflon

to KBank teller counters Documents related to money transfer or bill
payments

via K-MOBILE

BANKING ATM SIM can now be pnnted out for verification from the Banks website

3.3 K-MOBILE BANKING PLUS

K-MOBILE BANKING PLUS features new form of mobile banking service via specific

computer program running on internet-enabled mobile phones in GPRS/EDGEI3G
systems

of three

major networks In the iniflal stage services provided
via K-MOBILE BANKING PLUS indude balance

inquiry money transfer and bill payment This new service was introduced to KGroup staff during

special sales promohonal events in March 2009 while special privileges and benefits were offered to

staff who applied for and conducted money transfer or bill payment
via the K-MOBILE BANKING

PLUS service in these events

KPayment Gateway

To enhance convenience and efficiency for our participaflng merchant customers the

Bank has developed related online systems of K-Payment Gateway in addihon to improvements of

our internal operaUons and correchons of erroneous transaclions Developments
of note included

reimbursements reporting system data receiving and transmitting systems and an Activation During

Shopping system
for K-Credit Cards

In recognition of our efforts to develop our core businesses in every dimension we have

been widely honored with many prestigious awards and other marks of recognition during the first

quarter of 2009 They include

27



Best Bond House Dealer of the Year lop Underwriter Deal of the Year and Best Sales

of the Year for 2008 granted by the Thai Bond Market Associaflon in the first quarter of

2009

Asia Pacific Renewable Deals of the Year for 2008 from Project Finance magazine

Project
Finance Deal of the Year in Asia for 2008 from The Banker magazine

Excellence in Mortgage Business and Excellence in Mobile Phone Banking in

recognition of our K-MOBlE BANKING AIM SIM from The Asian Bankerjournal
KBank

was the orgy Thai commercial bank in Asia that won these presflgious awards at the

regional level

Domesnc lop Rated Ranng
under customer sausfaction

survey
conducted by

Global

Custodian magazine among customers using
domeshc custodial services worldwide

This
rahng

reflected
higher scores than the global average In 2008 the Bank also

received the highest scores in Domestic category
in the Thai custodial service markeL

3.4 Financial Position

KASIKORNBANKs Loans and Deposits

KASIKORNBANKs oans Classified by Business and Product Groups

Regarding the Banks loans classified by business and product groups
decrease in the

Banks total loans as of the end of March 2009 was led by Baht 24424 million decline in Corporate

Business loans to Baht 282191 million at the end of March 2009 from the Baht 307221 million seen

at the end of 2008 representing 1.95-percent contraclion This drop in Corporate Business loans

Un NIIion Baht

282191

Domestic Credd 1oans 215326 316281 226587 321198

Trade Finance Loans 19657 2102866009

BIBF Loans 1462

Housuig Loans

Credit Card Loans

Consumer Loans 9182

Note Revised to reIct regrouped customers

19532

1102

114021 112046

19543 20505

8885
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was mainly
from trade finances following the global economic slowdown In the meantime SME

Business loans also showed fall of Baht 6888 million to Baht 335938 million from the Baht 342826

million at the end of 2008 equivalent to 2.01-percent decrease particularly from domestic credits in

the hardware agricuftural and construction material industries In contrast gains
in Retail Business

loans totaled Baht 1310 million to Baht 142146 million from Baht 141436 million at the end of 2008

equivalent to 0.93-percent growth due mainly to an increase in housing loans

KASIKORNBANKs Deposits

Unfls MiHion Baht

As of March 31 2009 total deposits comprising deposfls of our corporate SME and retail

business customers equaled
Baht 915059 million down by Baht 53129 million or 5.55 percent

compared to the Baht 968188 million seen at the end of 2008 This was mainly the resuli of

decreases in fixed-term deposit accounts that came due while the Bank had introduced other high-

yield saving afternatives for customers

3.5 Treasury Operations

Operating Environment

The world economy remained in the doldrums as evidenced from the labor market indicators

and asset prices especially
stock indices and house prices which were on the ebb The

tight
credit

condition still persisted Central banks and authorities worldwide have embarked on several policy

initiatives to jump start their economies The U.S Federal Reserves Fed in particular resolved to

maintain its
policy

interest rate Federal Funds Rate at 0.00-0.25 percent
in its first two meetings of

the
year

in the first quarter of 2009 The Fed also
agreed to inject liquidity under the unconventional

quantitative easing policy framework particulady through the purchase of more Agency Mortgage-

Backed Securities extension of limits for the purchase of securities issued by the housing-related

Government Sponsored Enterprises and purchase of long-term bonds issued by the U.S Department

of the Treasury

Aside from the negative external factors that badly affected global trade volumes investors

confidence was also hurt by the economic slowdown at home and lingering political uncertainty

These adverse conditions wore down domestic purchasing power
and private spending despite

Current Accounts 5.28 48345 41648 691

Savings Accounts 41.91 438313 443211 4838 1.09

Fixed-Term Depos Accounts 46.81 428341 411929 49588 10.38
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various economic stimulus efforts by the Thai government In
response

to this greater economic risk

Thailands Monetary Policy Committee MPC resolved to cut the one-day repurchase rate

continuously by 0.15 percent
and 0.50 percent in the first two meetings

of the year on January 14 and

February 25 2009 respectively Thailands MPC rate dropped consequently from 2.15 percent by

the end of 2008 to merely
1.50

percent by the end of March 2009 leading
to the downward trend for

the domestic market interest rates

Business Operations in the First Quarter of 2009

Amid the changing
business environment mentioned earlier the Bank continued our cautious

management of liquidity and interest rate risks in
response

to the changing
market conditions

Although many leading
firms and financial institutions around the

globe
went bankrupt as result of

the widespread credit crisis and economic slowdown the Banks foreign investment portfolio had not

experienced any
adverse effects thereof due to our prudent

risk analysis for investments

KASIKORNBANK had in fact significanily reduced our foreign investment portfolios since mid-2007

Relevant parties had mongored all risks involved while investment opportunfties were constantly

reviewed and updated Since the end of 2001 the Bank has prepared sufficient liquidfty for business

undertaking in order to cushion any impacts from market
volatilfty

amid greater risks incurred from the

global economic downturn

KASIKORNBANK also paid
due attention to the ongoing development

of the private

repurchase market Private Repo thus enabling the Bank to hold the fourth-highest market share or

eleven percent of the overall market value or Private Repo transactions recording
one-fold increase

in 2008 as reported by the Thai Bond Market Association

Financial Position

For the first quarter of 2009 the total investments of treasury operations banking book

averaged Ball 281615 million increasing by Ball 119832 million or 74.04 percent compared to the

fourth
quarter

of 2008 Investments in the money market accounted for 41.83 percent
of the total

investments while investments in the capital market accounted for the remaining 52.11 percent

Treasury Operations Income

hots MiNion Baht

Note The
figures

above ate manageAal figures

Includlig
loans

Interest ant Income

Interbank and money
market gems 39.30 711 693 18 2.60

Investments 60.10 1098 890 208 23.37
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In the first quarter of 2009 we earned total interest and dividend income of Baht 1809 million

from our treasury operaons banking book rising by Ball 226 million or 14.21 percent
from the

final quarter of 2008 This was mainly due to significant
increase in the size of assets under

management while returns on investments dropped in tandem with the BoTs policy rate
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Risk Management and Risk Factors1

4.1 Credit Risk Management

To ensure an effechve response against the increased economic risk the Bank in the first

quarter
of 2009 continued to develop and improve our credit risk management in different

dimensions To summarize

roan portfolio management The Bank has established loan target for each

industry specified special-watch industnes conducted stress tests under different

economic scenarios as well as proceeded with credit risk analysis and

identification for each industry and indMdual customer These efforts help enhance

the Banks credit extension and quality control while credit monoring has been

carried out closely

Credit approval for new customers In addiDon to the risk-adjusted customer

screening criteria the Bank has adopted more cautious criteria for pre-screening of

customers in each industry credit underwnflng and credit extension volume for

special-watch and high-risk industries These had been used as the tools and

guidelines for credit-related officers to ensure higher efficiency in their credit

underwriting
and credit quality control

Exisung-customer relationship management The Bank has conhnued to monitor

review and revise the structure of customers credit limits to be in line with their

business conditions and cash flows In addition to adophng more caulious stance

towards credits extended to export-oriented industries especially automobiles

electrical appliances electrorics gems hotels and real estate all hard-hit by the

global
economic crisis we have exercised greater prudence in approving long-

term loans for production expansion Moreover the Bank has shifted our focus to

industries mainly rehant
upon

the domestic market and export-related industries stl

having high potential
in times of economic difficulty Working capital has been

provided to customers in these industries especially those with dear oIectives for

credit uses and can be verified by our staff We also developed eay warning signs

for customers including ther spending behaviors debt repayment records as well

as industry
situations and their business performances

Stress tests have been

The detas of Overall Risk Management Crecid RISk Market Risk liquidity Risk Operational Risk Management plus

the Basel II Capftal Accord and Performance Measurements using Risk-adjusted
Return on Capdal RAROC and

Economic Profit can be viewed in the MDA
report

for the year
ended December 31 2008
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undertaken as preemptive aclion to ensure that
any problem one occurs would

be solved in limely manner

Credit qualty monitoring and control To avoid an event of defauks in any customer

segment the Bank has adopted debt monitonng process
with increased

efficiency and speed For retail customers with æsky credit use records debt

collecDon would start on the first day of late payments Meanwhile the debt

collection process
for medium and large

business customers will begin right
after

the detechon of
any negahve signs

in their respecbve
businesses The Bank in

addition revised the debt colection and
recovery processes

for Companies to

ensure the consistency of policy direction

Outstanding oans

As of March 31 2009 the Banks consolidated outstanding loans stood at Baht 817142

million falling by Baht 26866 million or 2.91 percent from Baht 904008 million at the end of 2008

As of March 31 2009 60.24 percent of the Banks outstanding loans to customers were

loans exceeding Baht 20 milhon Credit extended to the 20 largest borrowers exduding Phethai

Asset Management Company Limited and the companies in KASIKORNBANKGROUP accounted for

Baht 53306 miHion or 6.10
percent

of the Banks total loan portfolio
which is not high compared to

total outstanding loans of the Bank Classihed by customer type jurislic persons
accounted for Baht

543621 million or 62.20 percent of outstanding loans while sole propnetorships
and individual

customer credit accounted for the remaining 37.80 percent
In terms of matuty credit with matuties

of less than or equal to year
accounted for 57.99

percent
of the Banks total loans

The Banks Consolidated Lending Portfolio Profile

less than 20MB Over 20MB

As of March 31 2009
3916

Cret Amount

..
39.2S

Business entities lndivhtoal

6220

602

Less than or equal to year
Over

year

.. ..
5L99

As of December 31 2008

As of March 31 2009

Te of Customer

As of December 31 2008

As of March 31 2009

Credit
Maturity

As of December 31 2008

20% 40% 60% 80% 100%
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The Banks consolidated lending portfolio including accrued interest receivables as of the

end of March 2009 and December 2008 is depicted in the following

The Banks Consolidated Lending Portfolio

including Accrued Interest Receivables

As of March 31 2ffl9 As_of December 31 2fl08

Non-performing Loans

As of March 31 2009 the Banks consolidated NPLs stood at Baht 34834 mUhon equal to

3.69
percent of the total outstanding credit including that of financial instulions For Bank-only NPLs

the amount totaled Baht 31861 milion accounhng for 3.38
percent

of the total outstanding credft

including that of financial insfitulions which represented an over-quarter increase These NPL
figures

are shown in the table below

Non-Performing Loans

Units Muon Ballnw
The Banks consolidated NPb 34834 33686

Percent of total outstanding credit including that of financial institutions 3.69 3.09

The Bank-only NPLs 31861 30630

Percent of total outstanding credit including that of financial institutions 3.38 2.81

The Bank of Thailand has required commercial banks to report
addiUonal informahon on

NPLS which includes

Net NPLs which refer to non-performing loans after aHowances are deducted

The ratio of net NPLS to total loans alter deduchng allowances for bad loans

Agncultural Mining

10.09% 2.87%

Housing Loans

13.45%

litlities Services

9.89%

Real Estate

Construction

Others Agricultural Mining

10.73% 2.19%

Housing Loans

12.82%

Uthties Services

9.31%

Real Estate

Construction

Mamitacturlig
Commerce

6.94% 6.73%

Manutactuting Commerce

56.69% 51.62%
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As of March 31 2009 the Banks consolidated net NPLs stood at Baht 11064 mihon equal

to 1.84 percent of the total outstanding credit including that of financial institutions For the Bank-only

net NPk the amount totaled Baht 14989 nillion accountlig for 1.62
percent

of the total outstanding

credit including
that of financial institutions which represents an over-quarter increase The net NP

figures are shown in the table below

Net Non-Peiforming Loans

Units Million Ball

The Banks consolidated net NPLs 11064 15112

Percent of total outstanding cred including that of financial institutions 1.84 1.41

The Bank-My net NPLs 14989 13591

Percent of total outstanding credL including that of financial institutions 1.62 1.21

In the first quarter of 2009 the Bank and subsidiary companies entered into debt

restructuring agreements
with borrowers with pre-written-off outstanding debts totSing

Baht 22114

million At the same time the
Bank.only pre-written-off outstanding debt amounted to Baht 22698

million The details of debt restructuring and losses from debt restructuring as of the end of March

2009 and 2008 are shown in the following table

Debt Restructuring and Losses from Debt Restructuring

Units Nilion Ball

22114 8261

1012 414

22698 8184

1012 391

Debt
restructuring

of the Bank and subskhary companies

Losses from debt restructuæng

Debt
restructuring

of the Bank only

Losses from debt restructudng

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Revaluation Allowance for Debt Restructuring

As of March 31 2009 the Banks consolidated allowances for doubtful accounts and

revaluation allowance for debt restructuring totaled Baht 30591 million This amount was equivalent

to 132.16 percent of the level required by
the BoT As for Bank-only allowances for doubtful accounts

and revaluation allowance for debt restructuring the amount stood at Baht 29331 million which was

equivalent to 129.81
percent

of the level required by the BoT

Foreclosed Properties

As of March 31 2009 the Banks consolidated foreclosed properties had cost value of

Baht 16116 million accounting for 1.32 percent of total assets At the same time Bank-only

foreclosed properties had cost value totaling
Baht 12616 milbon accounting for 1.04 percent of

total assets
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Meanwhile consolidated allowances for impairment of foreclosed properties were at Baht

1518 miHion equivalent to 9.19 percent of the cost value of those foreclosed properties
As for Bank-

only figures allowances for the impairment of foreclosed properties
totaled BaN 1229 million

representing 9.69 percent of the cost value of foreclosed properties Current allowances both

consolidated and Bank-only are believed to be sufficient to cover holding maintenance and disposal

expenses as well as losses on the liquidation of foreclosed properties
The details of foreclosed

properties and their associated allowances as of the end of March 2009 and December 2008 are

shown below

Foreclosed Properties

MiUn Ballfl
Consoidated foreclosed properties 16116 16135

Percent of total assots 1.32 1.24

Allowances for impaiment of consolidated foreclosed properties 1518 1143

Percent of consoidated foredosed properties
9.19 10.80

Bank-only foreclosed properties 12616 12616

Percent of total assots 1.04 0.91

Allowances for impaiment of Bank-only foreclosed properties 1229 1381

Percent of Bank-only foreclosed properties
9.69 10.99

Phethai Asset Management Company limited

As of March 31 2009 Phethai AMC had resolved and/or restructured NPb amounting to

Baht 12324 million or 98.00
percent

of the total initial unpaid pAncipal balance with an expected

recovery
rate of 48.00 percent The details of NPL resolution and/or restructuring over the past five

quarters are shown in the table below

oans Resolved/ Restructured at Phethai Asset Management Company limited

Qinits Milkm Baht

4.2
Liquidity

Risk Management

In the first quarter
of 2009 amid the continued economic contraction from late 2008 as

evidenced from weaker indicators of major economies the Bank faced higher
Asks in our operations

especially credit and market risks This led to consequential Ask particulady iquidity Ask As result

....thai Asset Lianaqement Company Limfted

Cumulative loans resolved/restructured 12324 12294 12100 11161 11510

Percent of the total innial unpaid principal
balance 98.00 98.00 91.00 96.96 96.62
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we revised our early warning signs and gLideline levels for the eady warning system to better match

the current economic circumstances our business direction as well as changes in financial markets

through which the Bank manages our liquidity These efforts have not only helped the Bank to brace

for the heightened economic risks and handle any liquidity problems in timely and more efficient

manner but also promoted effective communications among business units relevant to the liquidity

nsk of the Bank

4.3 Other Risk Management

Risks associated with Guarantees and Avals

Certain transactions with customers are in the form of
guarantees

on their borrowing or

performance
letters of credit or avals on notes Such transactions are considered to be

lending
which

requires submission of coilateral Regarding risk control in this area the Bank uses the same criteria as

used in the Banks normal credit approval processes
As of March 31 2009 the Banks contingent

obligations were Baht 104141 million compared to Baht 102209 million at the end of December 2008

Risks Incurred from Contractual Obligations on Derivative Instruments

The Bank conducts various derivative transactions as tools for hedging risks from exchange

rates interest rates as wel as securities prices
To increase our income the Bank also provides

derivative instrument trading services to customers and business allies as well as conducting our own

derivative instrument trading in accordance with the Banks policies As of March 31 2009 the Bank

had foreign exchange contracts on the purchase side of Baht 305132 milIon with Baht 324998

million on the sales side compared to Baht 310011 million and Baht 380311 million respectively at

the end of December 2008 In addition the Bank had interest rate contracts on the purchase side of

Baht 612526 million and Balit 612012 milion on the sales side compared to Baht 633826 miHion and

Baht 633312 milion respectively at the end of December 2008

Risks Related to Capital Adequacy

As of March 31 2009 the Banks capital adequacy ratio was at 15.63 percent which is

significanify above the BoT minimum requirement of 8.50 percent To ensure that our current capital

level is prudently sufficient to absorb any possible impacts from changes
in economic situations and

BoTs regulations for the present
and future the Bank continues to manage and monitor capital

adequacy closely
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Operaflons of Support Groups

Human Resource Management for the
Highest

Business Efficiency
of

KASIKORNBANKGROUP

In the first
quarter

of 2009 the Bank revised and upgraded our human resource

management in accordance with the changing
economic conditions of the country as means to

enhance operational efliciency
of the KASIKORNBANKGROUP On

top
of skill development and

learning management under the Training Roadmap including regular learning courses the Bank also

made
progress

on some initiatives comprising

Performance Management The Bank adjusted our People Management Goals in line with

the intensified competition in business undertakings
and our business expansion plan

Emphasis was placed on personnel retention To ensure practical implementation under

personnel retention the Bank has urged our middle-level managers to set retention

targets
for high-potential personnel being the top twenty percent

of personnel and

focused staff Revision of some deliverable guidelines for personnel retention showing

retention effort were also required for these managers based on the 360-degree

feedback management tool and observation of personnel retention behaviors among

executives

Recruitment In the first quarter of 2009 the Bank recruited 918 new staff in response to

KBanks business expansion plan The Bank also participated in the Career Exhibition

2009 duæng March 13-15 2009 at which 9620 candidates applied
for

employment
at

KBank

abor Relations The Bank has expanded communication channels with KBank staff

especially in the communications of certain strategic projects
which would trigger

signihcant changes in the quality of le and working environment among employees

These induded

K-Transformation Project Progress
of the project has been disseminated via

pænted

media in the third week of each month reporting progress
of the project

implementation

Inauguration of the Chaeng Watt hana Building The Bank organized
several

activities to communicate all
necessary

information on our new Main Office Buikhng

at Chaeng Watthana one of the countrys most green building eco-friendly to

facilitate the relocation process and to create pæde in the new building among our

employees

38



IT
Security Policy

and Infrastructure

In the first quarter of 2009 the Bank reviewed the IT Security Policy in compliance with

Royal Decree for Control of Electronic Payments Service B.E 2551 2008 This new regulation

governs
the transfer of legitimate holding of cash or the transfer of right for cash withdrawal or

deduction of funds from deposit account of service recipient opened with the service provider

through electronic channels either wholly or partially KASIKORNBANK as service provider in

electronic payments will have to prepare
all services in strict compliance with the criteria and

regulatory requirements before applying
for the electronic

payments
service license

K-Transformation

In the first quarter
of 2009 the Bank continued to make progress

in our K-Transformation

strategic project as planned with major accomplishments
in the Multi-Channel Sales and Services

MSS and IT
Capital OTC projects Regarding our MSS project the Bank has completed

the first

phase
of System Design Build after its ongoing development throughout

2008 We are now in the

system test phase to facilitate sales and services at branch level before planning to roll out this

system implementation to KBank branches nationwide during 2009-2010 For our ITC
project we are

currently under the system development phase and entering
into the testing phase for our new core

banking system to ensure efficient links to other IT systems We believe that this project will not only

meet the needs of the Bank business units but also enhance their competitiveness as well as enable

them to develop new products and services with complex features more responsively
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KASIKORNBANWs Investments in Subsidiary and Associated Companies

The Banks investments in subsidiary and associated companies as of the end of March

2009 are listed in the table below

Details of Investments

PHETHAI ASSET MANAGEMENT CO.LTD Bangkok Asset 800000000 800000000 100.00
Ordinary

16131682

Tel 0-2694-5000 Ext.5208 Fax 0-2694-5205 Management

Investmerl in KASIKORNBANKGROIJP

KASIKORN RESEARCH CENTER CO.LTD Bangkok Services 100000 100000 100.00 Ordinary 2530928

Tel 0-2273-1144 Fax 0-2270-1218

KASIKORN ASSET MANAGEMENT CO.LTD Bangkok Mutual Fund 27154214 27154274 100.00
Ordinary 136166293

Tel 0-2673-3999 Fax 0-2673-3000 Management

KASIKORN SECURITIES PUBLIC CO.LTD Bangkok Securties 60000000 59995762 99.99
Ordinary 32208963

Tel 0-2696-0000 Fax 0-2696-0099

KASIKORN FACTORING CO.LTD Bangkok Factoring
1600000 1600000 100.00 Ordinary 33201163

TeL 0-2290-2900 Fax 0-2276-9710

KASIKORJ LEASING CO.LTD Bangkok Leasing 90000000 90000000 100.00 Ordinary 31500183

Tel 0-2696-9999 Fax 0-2696-9988

Investmeri in Support Service Providers to KASIKORNBANKGROUP

PROGRESS GUNPAI CO.LTD Bangkok Services 200000 200000 100.00 Ordinary 19505483

Tel 0-2273-3900 Fax 0-2270-1 262

PROGRESS PLUS CO.LTD Bangkok Services 230000 230000 100.00 Ordinary 1548440

TeL 0-2225-2020 Fax 0-2225-2021

PROGRESS LAND AND BUILDINGS CO.LTD Bangkok Real Estate 1516000 1516000 100.00
Ordinary 333833

Tel 0-2275-1880 Fax 0-2275-1889 Devepment

lnvestmerl in Assut Management Company
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Tel 0-2213-3288-91 Fax 0-2213-3292

PROGRESS MANAGEMENT CO.ITD Bangkok Services 60000 60000 100.00 Ordinary 1296564

Tel 0-2215-1880 Fax 0-2215-1889-91

PROGRESS SOFTWARE CO.LTD Bangkok Services 100000 100000 100.00 Ordinary 16214898

Tel 0-2225-1900-1 Fax 0-2225-5654-5

PROGRESS STORAGE CO.LTD Bangkok Services 30000 30000 100.00
Ordinary

4171784

Tel 0-2213-3833 Fax 0-2271 -4184

PROGRESS SERVICE CO.LTD Bangkok Services 20000 20000 100.00 Ordinary 4412243

Tel 0-2273-3293-4 Fax 0-2273-3292

PROGRESS CO.UID Bangkok Services 10000 10000 100.00 Ordinary 4258461

Tel 0-2270-1010-6 Fax 0-2210-1008-9

10 PROGRESS SERVICE SUPPORT CO.LTD Bangkok Services 40000 40000 100.00
Ordinary 4541801

Tel 0-2470-5414 Fax 0-2410-5355

11 PROGRESS APPRAISAL CO.LTD Bangkok Services 5000 5000 100.00
Ordinary 615860

Tel 0-2270-6900 Fax 0-2278-5035

12 PROGRESS COLLECTION CO.LTD Bangkok Services 50000 50000 100.00 Ordinary 124103

Tel 0-2273-3210 Fax 0-2213-2559

13 K-SME VENTURE CAPITAL CO.LTD Bangkok Joint 20000000 20000000 100.00 Ordinary 1042990

Tel 0-2693-2333 Fax 0-2693-2323 Venture

14 KHAO KLA VENTURE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT Venture

CO.LTD Bangkok CapaI 1000000 1000000 100.00 Ordinary 859418

Tel 0-2693-2333 Fax 0-2693-2323 Management

Investmeil in Associated Companies

PROCESSING CENTER CO.LTD Bangkok Services 500000 150000 30.00 Ordinary 12821780

Tel 0-2231-6330-4 Fax 0-2231-6340

RURAL CAPITAL PARTNERS CO.LTD Bangkok Joint 1000000 275000 27.50 Ordinary 101940

Tel 0-2718-1852-3 Fax 0-2118-1850 Venture

PROGRESS FACILITIES MANAGEMENT CO.LTD Bangkok Services 50000 50000 100.00 Ordinary 1184339
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Tel Fax

Note These
operating performance figures are shown in subskfiary and associated conanies fmancial statements

KHAO KLA VENTURE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT CO.LTD is subsidiary company of KASIKORN ASSET MANAGEMENT CO.LTD Smce the

Bank has fully owned KASIKORN ASSET MANAGEMENT CO.LTD which holds 100-percent shares in KHAO KLA VENTURE CAPITAL

MANAGEMENT CO.LTD means that the Bank has indirectly held 100-percent shares in KHAO KLA VENTURE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

CO LTD

GRAND HOTEL CO.LTD Bangkok Hotel 100000l0 200000X 20.00
Ordinary
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